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Texas Community Development Block Grant Program
Planning and Capacity Building Fund

2015 Application

1700 North Congress Avenue, 11th Floor PCE Fund Administrator: Joe Midura
Austin, Texas 78701 Phone; 512-936-7880
P.C. Box 12847 Fax: 888-216-9867

Austin, Texas 78711 Email: J(:-c‘Midu;'a(éi'=Te>:asAgs'Ecul{ur‘c.gw

City of Llano
APPLICANT NAME
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APPLICATION FOR TxCDBG ASSISTANCE

CMB Approval No.0348-004)

1. TYPE OF SUBMISSION
Application:

[ Construction
Non-Construction

Pre-application:
[7] Construction
[ ] Non-Construction

2. DATE SUBMITTED:

APPLICANT IDENTIFIER:

3. DATE RECEIVED BY STATE: STATE APPLICATION IDENTIFIER:

4. PATE RECD by FEDERAL AGENCY: | FEDERAL IDENTIFIER:

5. APPLICANT INFORMATION:

Legal Name:
City of Llano

Organizational Unit:
City of Llano

Address {City, County, State, and Zip Code) of applicant:

301 West Main Street
Llano, Lano County, Texas 78643

Name/Title, Agency or Company, Address, Area Code, Telephone and
Fax Numbers, and e-mail address of applicant preparer:

Gary R. Traylor, President

Traylor & Associates, Inc.

P.O. Box 7035, Tyler, Texas 75711

903-581-0500 Ext. 221 Office / 903-581-4245 Fax

gary@grtraylor.com
6. EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (EINY: 6a. DUNS NUMBER:
1-74-6001624-3 091695205
7. TYPE OF APPLICANT: 8. TYPE OF APPLICATION:
B< A. Municipal [_1B. County X New (] Continuation [} Revision

9..NAME OF FEDERAL / STATE AGENCY:
Texas Department of Agricufture

10. CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE NUMBER:
14-228 Title: Texas Community Development Block Grant Pragram (TxCDBG)

11, _PROJECT TYPE:

Planning & Urban Eavironmental Design (20)

1la, TYPE OF APPLICATION:
Planning & Capacity Building Fund

12. TARGET AREA(S) AFFECTED BY THE PROIECT:

City-Wide

13. APPLICANT'S FISCAL YEAR:

Beginning Date: 10-1 Ending Date: 9-30

14. CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICTS:

Representative: 53 Senate: 24 Congress: 11

15. ESTIMATED FUNDING:
A. TxCDBG REQUEST:

$32,145.00

B. FEDERAL:

C. STATE:

D. APPLICANT:

$6,340.00

E. LOCAL:

F. OTHER:

G. TOTAL:

$38,485.00

16. IS APPLICATION SUBJECT TO REVIEW BY STATE EXFCUTIVE
ORDER 12372 PROCESS?

u Yes the preapplication / application was maQe available to the
State Executive Order 12372 process for review on;
Date:
B4 No
[ ] Program is not covered by £.0. 12372 -OR-~
[] Program has not been selected by the State for review

17,15 THE APPLICANT DELINQUENT ON ANY FEDERAL DERT?
[] Yes. If "Yes", attach an explanation. [X] No

GUIDE IF THE ASSISTANCE IS AWARDED.

DOCUMENT HAS BEEN DULY AUTHORIZED BY THE GOVERNING B
CERTIFICATIONS AND CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN INCLUDED

18. TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF ALL DATA IN THIS APPLICATION/PREAPPLICATION ARE TRUE AND CORRECT. THE
ODY OF THE APPLICANT AND THE APPLICANT WILL COMPLY WITH THE
IN THE PROCEDURES SECTION OF THE TxCDBG PROGRAM APPLICATION

Typed Name of the Applicant's Authorized Representative:

Title

Mikel Virdell
\

Mayor

Telephone Number
+1 (325) 247-4158

E-mait Address
blewis@cityofliano.com

Signature of thk Applicant's Authorized Representative:

l_/\m — \)”_\"ﬂ

Date

February 24, 2015

SR

City of LLano

Previous Editions Not Usable

STANDARD FORM 424 (REV-4-88)
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" -PROJECT APPROVA

1. Does the applicant levy the following tax revenues?

Local Property (Ad Valorem) Tax:

k< O [
X OO
Y

Local Sales Tax Option
2. Will the assistance requested have any negative impact(s) or effect{s} on the environment?

Note: All funded applications will have (o comply with Federal requiations regarding environment clearance before funds are released.

3. Based on available information, is the proposed project likety to require an archaeological assessment for
any proposed site?

. Is the proposed site fisted on the National Register of Historic Places?
- Is the project in a designated flood hazard area?

4

5

6. Will the assistance requested cause the displacement of families, individuals, farms, or businesses?
7

. Has the applicant obtained 3 ratified, legally binding agreement, contingent upon award, between the
applicant and the service provider that will operate the project for the continual operation of the
improvements as proposed in the application?

NI
X KKK X
i

8. Does the applicant or service provider currently hold the Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN)
for the target area proposed in the application?

=4
X O K
1

9. Will any of the improvements proposed in this application take place in a designated Colonia area?
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__ COMMUNITY NEED:

LIST OF ALL IDENTIFIED COMMUNITY NEEDS / PROBLEMS:

1. Water Improvements

Wastewater Study (collection and treatment) & improvements
Street Conditions Study & Improvements

Mapping - Land use, housing and population

Capital Improvements

Parks and Recreation

U V. R N VU N

Base Mapping

COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT QUESTIONNAIRE

Describe the jurisdictions current supply of affordable housing {Public Housing, Section 8 assisted, RHS assisted, HOME
program assisted, TDHCA assisted, L.ocal Housing Development Corp. assisted, etc.).

City of Uano Housing Authority - Public Housing S0 units

LLano Square - Rural Development Housing 36 Units

Legend Qaks - Tax Credit Apartments 50 units

Park Ridge - Tax Credit Apartment

Describe the applicant’s past efforts to increase the supply of affordable housing.

The city of Llano provides affordable housing through the Housing Authority, Texas Department of Agriculiure Rural
Development Housing, and Tax Credit Apartments for families and seniors. The city also works with Llano County to assist
with Section 8 housing in Marble Falis.

Describe any future efforts that the applicant plans to underiake to increase the supply of affordable housing.

The city wili consider applying for affordable housing as needed in the city.

Describe any instances where the applicant has applied for affordable housing funds and did not receive the funding.
None

Describe any instances, within the past five years, where the applicant has not accepted funds for affordable housing.
None

Describe the applicant's efforts, within the past three years, to provide infrastructure improvements through the issuance of
general obligation or revenue bonds.
None

FAIR HOUSING ACTIVITIES

Any locality receiving TxCDBG monies must certify that it will affirmatively further fair housing. Using the below table, please
identify the activities presently undertaken to affirmatively further fair housing and which new activities will be undertaken if
an award is made by TxCDBG. Locatities should be aware that, in the event of funding, these fair housing efforts will be
monitored. Other activities may be eligible, and the applicant should contact Department to determine eligibility.

Activity Presently Undertaken Will be Undertaken

Passing a Fair Housing Ordinance

Developing a Strategy to Pass a Fair Housing Ordinance
Initiating a Fair Housing Counseling Service

Assisting Fair Housing Groups

Estabiishing Local Complaint and Monitoring Processes
Providing Housing Choices Qutside Historically Minority and/or LMI neighborhoods {3 [7
Assisting Housing Projects that are Racial Mixed

Enforcing Fair Housing Guidelines that are Equivalent to a Fair Housing Ordinance

OO0 0oK

Adepting and Distributing Fair Housing Practices
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Designating a Fair Housing Manth < >

Other: NA
THE NEEDS IN THIS APPLICATION WERE DETERMINED BY: |
Assessment Type: Fﬁblic Hearing i Assessment Date; Dec 1, 2014 o
DESCRIPTION OF THE NEED(S) ADDRESSED IN THIS APPLICATION J

Provide a brief description of the locality's anticipated actions to solve each of the problems identified in the "List of All
Identified Community Needs", The specific actions suggested on this page should give an indication of projects that can be
implemented. These projects may consist of new construction, replacement of or improvements of facilities, rehabilitation of
housing, attracting new industry, etc. The planning proposed on Table 1 should lead to the implementation of the priority
projects.
Wastewater Study (Collection and Treatment) - The wastewater study will provide a description of plant, collection
system, rehabilitation activities, the implementation of which will reduce inflow and infiltration and preserve the
operation of the city's wastewater treatment plant. This study will also help to keep the city's plant in compliance with
all reguiations.

Street Conditions - The street conditions study will enable the city to implement an effective program to conserve and
improve its streets. A goal for this program will be to mitigate against future reconstruction through diligent
maintenance.

Base Fee: mapping land use, housing and population - The base maps that will be supplied will allow the city's service
providers to have an accurate ability to identify project areas and will be available for use in establishing land use, street
and housing planning and monitor growth and land use conversions, The city will be able to accurately asses our
existing conditions, spot potential problem areas, trends and plan for the future,

Capital Improvements - The capital improvements plan will identify and prioritize the needs of Liano and group them
into short/immediate, 5 year and long range plans. The plan will include suggested finance plans, tax rate structures and
utility rates.

Parks and Recreation - The parks and recreation plan will atlow local people to register their desires with respect to
specific recreational needs and to plan and prioritize the development of additional recreational improvements,

Digitized base mapping - The base mapping will allow the city to accurately locate highways, right of ways, street
names, drainage, bodies of water, information on subdivisions, property lines and utility easements, Accurate mapping
will allow the city to asses the current conditions of the city and plan for the future.

Was a 2015-2016 Community Development Application submitted? (<] Yes [ JNo

Describe:

The Llano River Lake is the city's source for water. Currently the access gates on the dam are not warking properly. The CD
application is requesting to install two (2) Stuice Gates, two (2) Pneumatic Operators for the gates at the city's dam, and install a
SCADA System, sensors at the city's water treatment plant including all associated appurtenances at both locations.

vl
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JUSTIFICATION FOR TARGET AREA

This section must be completed for all applications in which the planning is to be limited (o & farget area of less than the entire jurisdiction of the applicant.
Please give the reasons for proposing lo do planning for a target area by addressing the following questions:

Why is it necessary or advantageous to limit planning to the target area?

Planning application is for city-wide benefit

What conditions are present in this area that distinguishes it from other parts of the jurisdiction?

Planning application is for city-wide benefit

Are there other areas of the jurisdiction that have similar conditions?

Planning application is for city-wide benefit

If the probiems of this target area are resolved, what other problems will still remain to be addressed.

Planning application is for city-wide benefit

Community wide activities such as: economic studies, ordinances, etc., that are proposed for target area planning, but cannot
be separated from total community planning must be justified on how the activity will be developed in a planning document and
still maintain a separation between the target area and community wide planning in compliance with the 51 percent Low-to-
Moderate Income threshold requirements.

Planning application is for city-wide benefit

How does the applicant proposed to accomplish planning for the rest of the jurisdiction and on what schedule? (Remember that
HUD considers the effort proposed in this application to be a separate one from any that would be accomplished at an area-wide
level. Any planning activities and reports to be generated must be criented to benefit the area which qualified as being of
primarily low and moderate income residents),

Planning application is for city-wide benefit
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PROJECT BENEFICIARY INFORMATION

MUST BE COMPLETED FOR EACH ACTIVITY EXCLUDING ENGINEERING AND ADMINISTRATION

LEMEN TCTAL MALE TOTAL FEMALE TOTAL
ELEMENT _BENEFICIARIES NEFICIARIES | BENEFICIARIES
Certifications, Presentations, Reports & Puh 1,396 1,679 3,075
Race # Non-Hispanic # Hispanic Total Beneficiaries
Beneficiaries Beneficiaries
White 2,493 423 2,916
Black/African American 7 0 7
Other or Multi-Racial 152 0 152
Activity Total: 3,075
ELEMENT TOTAL MALE TOTAL FEMALE TOTAL
ELEMENT BENEFICIARIES | BENEFICIARIES | BENEFICIARIES
Base Fee 1,396 1,679 3,075
Race # Non-Hispanic # Hispanic Total Beneficiaries
Beneficiaries Beneficiaries
White 2,493 423 2,916
Black/African American 7 0 7
Other or Multi-Racial 152 0 152
Activity Total: 3,075
ELEMENT TOTAL MALE TOTAL FEMALE TOTAL
R BENEFICIARIES | BENEFICIARIES | BENEFICIARIES
Street Conditions 1,39 1,679 3,075
Race ' # Non-Hispanic # Hispanic Total Beneficiaries
Beneficiaries Beneficiaries
White 2,493 423 2,916
Black/African American 7 0 7
Other or Multi-Racial 152 0 152
Activity Total: 3,075
ELEMENT TOTAL MALE TOTAL FEMALE TOTAL
=Rt BENEFICIARIES | BENEFICIARIES | BENEFICIARIES
Wastewater Study 1,396 1,679 3,075
Race # Non-Hispanic # Hispanic Total Beneficiaries |
Beneficiaries Beneficiaries
White 2,493 423 2,916
Black/African American 7 0 7
Other or Multi-Racial 152 0 152

City of Llano
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Activity Total: 3,075
ELEMENT TOTAL MALE TOTAL FEMALE TOTAL
SRETENL BENEFICIARIES | BENEFICIARIES | BENEFICIARIES
Capital Improvements Program 1,396 1,679 3,075
Rage # Non-Hispanic # Hispanic Total Beneficiaries
Beneficiaries Beneficiaries
White 2,493 423 2,916
Black/African American 7 0 7
Other or Multi-Racial 152 0 152
Activity Total: 3,075
ELEMENT TOTAL MALE TOTAL FEMALE TOTAL
EREERL BENEFICIARIES | BENEFICIARIES | BENEFICIARIES
Parks and Recreation 1,396 1,679 3,075
Race # Non-Hispanic # Hispanic Total Beneficiaries
Beneficiaries Beneficiaries
White 2,493 423 2,916
Black/African American 7 t] 7
Other or Multi-Racial 152 0 152
Activity Total: 3,075
ELEMENT TOTAL MALE TOTAL FEMALE TOTAL
T BENEFICIARIES | BENEFICIARIES | BENEFICIARIES
Digitized Base Map 1,396 1,679 3,075
 Race # Non-Hispanic ~ # Hispanic Total Beneficiaries
Beneficiaries Beneficiaries
White 2,493 423 2,916
Black/African American 7 0 7
Other or Muiti-Racial 152 0 152
Activity Total: 3,075
TOTAL 21,525
1. Was a TxCDBG Survey used to identify beneficiaries? Yes: {7} Not [X]
2. Was Census information used to identify beneficiaries? Yes B No []
a. Has the required Census map been provided? Yes [X] No ] N/A [ ]

b. List all census tracts and block groups included in the project area. Be sure to identify the total beneficiaries claimed

for each area. A spreadsheet or Census document may be submitted i
indicate "Refer to the attached HUD Census Based Data Spreadsheet”.

“Citywide" or "Countywide”.
CENSUS GEOGRAPHIC AREA DATA:

City of Llano

n lieu of completing this question (be sure to
For citywide or countywide projects, indicate

Page 11 of 20



Census Tract(s) Biock Group(s) Persons Benefiting < Refer to the attached HUD Census Based Data
$701.00 2 0 = Spreadsheet
9702.00 1,2,3 1,963 X Citywide? ] Countywide?
9703.00 2 1,112

3. Provide the number of project beneficiaries identified through each of the following methods:

TxCDBG Survey: 0 Census: 3,075 Area Benefit: 0

Housing Activity: 0 Limited Clientele: 0

4. If beneficiaries were identified by using a survey as opposed to using Census information, provide a detailed explanation
of the reason. A response such as “to reach the low to moderate income level” is not acceptable.

NA- Census information used

City of Liano Fage 12 of 20




NATIONAL ‘PROGRAM OBJECTIVES
Eﬂ 1. Activities benefiting low-to-maderate income persons.

Method(s) used to determine the beneficiaries:

LMI Area Benefit: [ LMI Housing Activity: [ ) LMI Limited Clientele: ] LMI Jobs: [}
[ 1 2. Prevention/ Elimination of Slums or Blight.

[ ] 3. Urgent Needs

City Wide census used to justify beneficiaries since planning activities will benefit entire city.

] ANTICIPATED OBJ] ECTIVES AND QUTCOMES
ACTIVITY )

ANT’ICIPA'fED OBIECTIVE ANTICIPATED OUTCOME
20 1. Create suitable living environment o 3. Sustainability o
City of Llanc

Page 13 0f 20




COMMUNITY BASE QUESTIONNAIRE

- STAFF CAPACITY

r
1
a
b

. Is the chief administrator full-time? Yes 3 No ]
. Does the applicant have a full-time planner? Yes [ ] No [
...a part-time planner? Yes [[] No [X
C. Does the applicant have a planner on retainer? Yes [] No X

d. Indicate the focal staff person who is familiar with the application's contents and who will be responsible for coordinating
the development of the planring process and reports.
Name: Toni Mifam Title: City Secretary
Phone Number: ) __*+1(329) 247-4158 ~ Fax Number: +1(325) 247-4150 B

€. Describe the local staff person's planning experience:

19 years performing the duties as a Planning and Zoning Administrator

2. ORGANIZATION FOR PLANNING

Check those compeonents that are currently in place or will be in place by the application deadline (

and list member names below):

City of Llano

Planning and Zoning Commission [%] Planning Commission [(]  Zoning Commission / Board i
Specify "Other" by Name [ ] City Manager / Administrator X County Judge / Commissioners (]
Citizen Advisory Committee (] Zoning Board of Adjustment (<]
Planning and Zoning Commission:
This body is: Active:  [X]  Not Active: [ Meets 12 times per year,
CNAaME T  OCCUPATION DATE TERM EXPIRES |
Diana Fires{dgé_m Charzman ------ Dec 2015
Drucilla Banner Commission Member Dec 2017 o
Judy Schluess“ér B Commission Member Dec 2017- -
Sam Qatman T ComranS!on Member i Dec 2015
_—_ Stan Venablg wi_—_i:_ 1 7_ ----- Comm;ssmn Member _ Dec 20%7__ ]
City Manager / Administrator {Identify the Mayor and Clty Councul members in the list below)
Name of Manager / Admln:stratoa# e - Brenton Lewis‘ N
This body is: Active:  [X] Not Active: f_] Meets 24  times per year.
 NAME - OCCUPATION DATE TERM EXPIRES
Mikel Virdet o Mayor May 2015 B _
] Todd Keller ] Alderman May 2015 |
] John Ferguson Alderman B May 2016 o]
Bryan Miiller Mayor Pratem May 2015 B
Allen Hopson.m Aiderman May 2016
Gail Lang Alerwoman May 2016
Zoning Board of Adjustment
Name of Manager / Administrator: ] ] Mikel Virdel o
This body is: Activer X} Not Active: [7] Meets _ 12 times per year.
NAME OCCUPATION DATE TERME PIRE_S
Mikel Virdel | Chairman May 2015 )
Todd Keller R } - _Board Member May 2015 -
4 o ) T Page 14 0f 20



John Ferguson - Board Member A May 2016
Bryan Miiller Board Member ) Ma&x 2015
B Allen Hopson Board Member May 2016
Gail Lang Board Member May 2016
3. PLANNING EFFORTS
a. Availahility of Adeguate Mapping Available? Digitized? - Map Map
1. _Base: Yes No Yes No Scale Date
(a) Corporate Area (Double Line) <] L] ) ] 1:23,225 (Var.) 1998 )
(b) Planning Area (ETJ miles) >4 [ X I Varies 1998
QCumypasdstes gy ®m [ vees 1
2. Topographic:
{a) USGS i i) (] X NA NA
{p) Other <4 ] ™ (] 1 Varies Topograg 1998
3. tand Use
{a) Existing X (] ] O Varies 1998
(b) Future M X M X NA NA B
4. _Zoning District 4 . X 7 Varies ) 1998
5. Utilities Owned by Locality
(a) Water B4 [] M [ Varies 1998
(b) Wastewater = I o B NA NA
(c) Gas 0 x  O  0 NA s
(d) Electrical 4 (M O (] Varies 1998
6...Flood Plain (<] ] 4 ' Varies 1998

7. Indicate the condition of the corporate map, planning area map, or other mapping, whether map is up-to-date, map
dimensions, whether in digital format, etc.

Corporate map is in digitat format from 1998

b, Indicate the following codes and/or ordinances that the applicant has adopted;

ADOPTED ADOPTED UPDATED UPDATED
Yes No DATE Yes No DATE

1._Zoning X ] 7/21/1997 4 ] 5/1/2006
2. Subdivision Regulations X L 11/7/2005 (] P NA
3. Mobite Home 4 (3 9/7/1993 < M 9/20/1993
4. Flood Plain < O 4/16/2012 0 N4 NA
5. Electrical Code < [ 1/20/2015 ] X NA
6. Plumbing Code [ ] 1/20/2015 (] & NA
7. Natural Gas Code X (] 1/20/2015 [ <4 NA
8...Building Code X o 1/20/2015 ] X NA
9, Minimum Standards (Housing) X ] 8/19/2002 < F] 1/5/2009
10. Dangerous Structures X ] 8/18/2014 ] X NA

City of Llano Page 15 of 20




11 Fire Code = I 10/20/2008 L] ]

¢ Explain lack of activity regarding codes and ordinances:

The city updates codes and ordinance as needed.

d. Does the applicant have a code enforcement program?

NA

Shawn Sutton

f.. Is the applicant participating in_the National Flood Insurance Frogram? Yes §J No [
g._Previous planning studies funded with locals funds or with grant funds;
Planning
Adapted Percent Funded
Planning Activity Date Yes No Implemented* Through
1. Land Use _.9/1998 i L1 0 Local
2. Housing 9/1998 B4 [} 20 Private
3. Street / Circulation _o 9198 ¥ I 25 Local
4. Central Business District . 9/1898 X r s _ Grant
5. Economic Development A I (] 85 Grant
6. Parks _.9/199%8 [ M 0 Local
7. Water System L. 9/1998 I cr 66 . Grant
8. Wastewater System _.8/1898 ¥ I 80 Grant
9. Drainage L1987 Grant
10. Solid Waste 9998 X [} 0 tocal
11. Capital Improvements Program _.9/1988 X I 0 . Gant
12. Other Plans ]
Electrical Study . 9/1998 [ o 90 Grant
Subdivision Ordinance 9 1998 B L9 _ . Local
*Implemented means funds have been spent te accomplish recommendations, Attach hepeto documentation of implementation,
h. Does the planning applied for herein duplicate other planning recently completed {within 10 years -
prior to the application deadline) or now underway? Yes [J No (X
I. How long has the city heen incorporated? 158 years Year Incorporated? _ 1856
5. FISCAL AND OTHER INFORMATION
a. Applicant’s fiscal year: From: _ Oct 1, 2014 _To: Sep 30, 2015
b. Applicant has levied property tax? Yes X No [] Rate: o 0.39633 / $100.00
C. Maximum tax rate allowed by law is: ) 44023 / $100.00
d. Percent property taxes collected fast (2013) fiscal year is: _ 98%
€. Average property tax collection rate for 2012 and 2013 is: 98%
f. Applicant has adopted sales tax? Yes Ne [
g. Passed a 0.5% sales tax to fund an industrial development corporation/economic development: Yes <] Nol[T]
2011 2012 2013
h. Property tax collected: _ 55941500  566,571.00 581,686.00
i, State tax: 682,667.00 692,420.00 752,563.00
J. Total revenues (all sources): 2.671,118.00 ~ 10,573,385.00 10,382,960.00
k. Total expenditures: _9,525,662.00 10,355,605.00 10,382,960.00

. Utilities owned and operated by applicant and the amount of revenue coltected (2013) fiscal year:

City of Llano
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Owned Collected Other Coliected

[0 Water System - 949,194.00 0 wastewater 826,719.00
[ ] Gas System NA X Electric 4,672,113.00
[] water System NA (L] Other (Specify) NA
USE 2013 DATA FOR THE FOLLOWING:
m. Ratio of total debt to total market value of all taxable property:  $7,558,668.00 222,517,791 3%
n. The per capita bonded gebt is: $6,502,000.{)0ﬁ / 3,325 ﬁ$11955'49m
0. The ratio of Annuai Debt Service to Annual Revenues is: ~ $675,422.00 /10,567,699 6%
6. HOUSING CHARACTERISTICS
a. Has the applicant adopted, updated or revised a Fair Housing Ordinance since 19887 Yes £<I No [}
b. Applicant has a program for encouraging preservation of existing heusing and neighborhoods? Yes [X} No C]
[ ] Housing rehabilitation loan or grants Years? NA )
X Active code enforcement program Contact (Code Enforcement Officer):  Shawn Sutton

[ ] Expansion of services in target neighborhoods as defined by a written plan adopted in: Date: NA e
{ ] Other
C. Has the applicant participated in federally funded housing programs? Yes <] Ne  {7]
B Low rent public housing
4] Other

Name of funded program: LIHTC

Year of funded program: 2000

Name of funded program: RD 515

Year of funded program: . ise2

Name of funded program: LIHTC

Year of funded program: 2012
d. Local housing authority? Yes [ No []
Number of public housing units: 50

Name of housing authority's Director: Marilyn Hale

Telephone Number +1 (325) 247-4931

7. POPULATION AND THE ECONOMY
2000 Population:__ww_3_3_m2ﬁ5m_mﬂ 2010 Population: _ 3232 *Present 2014 Fstimate: 3232

W a citywide TxCDBG income survey was conducted o qualify the application, the present estimate should correspond with the survey population count either on a citywide basis or as
census data supplemented by a larget area survey. This should lypicaily be the same lotal haopulalion as on Table 2 of Ihis apphication.

3. Source of present population estimate: Suburban Statistics

b. Significant change between 2000 population and present 2014 estimate is attributed to {explain):

No change

€. What has been done in the last three years to attract and/or retain business / industry, population, and residents?

Attracted retail Alco in 2012 by entering into a Economic Development Incentive Program and Agreement, Facade
grants to businesses to improves the faoks of their businesses,

5 )
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d. Provide the names, types of business, and approximate number of employees of the top employer{s) in or near the
- locality that impact(s) the labor force and the community,

Name of Business Type Number of Employees
Llano ISD School system 294
Buttery Hardware Retail Lumber 100
Ben E. Keith Food Distributor 30
Scott and White Hospital Health Care 75
City of Llano Local Gavernment 39

8. FEDERAL AND OTHER FUNDING

a. List all the Foundation, Federal, and State or other Grant and/or Loan Funds applied for in the last three years (since
01/01/2011). Complete the information on each and indicate if request is still pending.

Program Name and Agency Applied To Date Approved | Date Not Appreved Pendmg Apgtication Am't
TOA TXCDBG NA NA XY [N 275,000

TDA Main Street Grant 2/6/2015 NA (1Y X N 150,000
 TDA TXCDBG 11/1/2012 NA 1Y XN 350,000

TDA TXCDBG $/30/10 NA (1Y 5 N 250,000

Texas Historical Commission 2011 NA [JY XN 0
TDA TxCDBG 16/1/2011 NA (1Y B4 N 275,000

b, Briefly describe each activity, the dollar amount, and status or level of implementation in each of the programs listed in
8a that were funded.

TDA Main Street Grant - funded in 2015 for $150,000 for sidewalk improvements in the Main Street Area. Improvements
will be focated on Berry, Allen, and W, Main.

TDA TxCDBG - Funded in 2052 for city wide water system improvements. Grant amount - $350,000

TDA TxCDBG - Funded in 2010 for water system improvements for water line and fire hydrants on Chattanooga Ave.
Grant amount $275,000.

Texas Historical Commission -Funded in 2011 for Red Top Jail for lowering grade around the structure and stabilizing the
building structure including the foundation. Grant amount $30,000

TDA TxCDBG - Funded in 2012 for water system improvements in the northern section of town. Grant Amount $275,000
¢. Does the applicant have unresolved audit or compliance findings related to any TxCDBG project? Yes [ ] No [X

9. Within the space below, list some indications of the locality's likelihood to stay directly involved in the
planning process and to implement the planning proposed in this application:

1. City has a active planning and zoning committee

2. City strives to say in compliance with laws and requlations

3. (itizen participation
10. PROPOSED PLANNING EFFORT:

Up to 30 points to applicants which have not previously participated in the TxCDBG Planning Program. An applicant that
[ has not received any TxCDBG Planning and Capacity Building funds in the ten years prior to the application deadiine will
be considered as a "new" applicant that has not received previous Planning and Capacity Buiiding funding.

Up to 30 points for applicants which have received previous PCB grants in the ten years prior to the application deadline,
M and can demonstrate that at least three planning recommendations have been implemented, (i.e., funds have been spent
- to implement / finance recommendations included in the plans, including local / other funds and not just funds provided
through TxCDBG). Attach documentation.

lage 1 .
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Up to 20 points to applicants which have participated in the "PCB planning program”, and can demcnstrate some
_implementation of the planning recommendations {i.e., funds, regardless of source, have been spent to accomplish

(! something). OR, applicants which have received previous planning / capacity grant(s), but can demonstrate that

conditions have changed to warrant new planning for the same activities, will also receive up to 20 points. Attach

documentation.
Aftach any supporting documentation fo the application, such as for documenting implementation of previously prepared planning studies.

City of Liano

Page 19 of 20



CITY OF LLANO

PLANNING STUDIES ACCOMPLISHED
CERTIFICATION

The City of Llano has accomplished the planning studies as set forth in the current

comprehensive plan that was administered through the Planning and Capacity grant in
19986 as follows:

[ PERCENTAGE Funded
Study ACCOMPLISHED Through
Fees, Bonds &
Water Study 66% Grants
Fees, Bonds &
Wastewater Study 80% Grants
Drainage Study 75% Fees
Electrical Study 90% Fees
Economic Development Study 85% Fees
Fees, Bonds &
Capital Improvements Study 70% Grants
Central Business District Study 80% Fees
Subdivision Ordinance Study 95% Fees ]

e

Mikel Yirdell, Nlayoj




ATTACHMENTS

Provide the following attachments (if applicable) in the order specified.
<] Resolution
B4 Public Notices

(< A copy of the actual published public hearing notice

2 A copy of the actual published notice of the application{s} activities and availability of the application(s) for public
review

X A listing of the local service providers that were sent the written notification of the public hearing.
X3 Project Map(s) - if applicable
[ ] Letter(s) of Commitrent
[ ] Survey Tabulation Form(s)
(x4 Applicant's Most Recent Annual Audit
[ Active SAM.gov registration {Screenshot)

APPLICATION CHECKLIST

The following serves as an application checklist that each applicant must use to ensure that an application under the
Community Development Fund is complete:

[<] SF424

£ Project Approvat Information

(<] Community Needs Assessment (Al Sections)
[X] Target Area Justification

X< Table 1

[ Table 2

(] Project Beneficiary Information

EX} Nationat Program Objective Information

(<] Community Base Questionnaire

City of Llano
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RESOLUTION 2015-02-02-1

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LLANO, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF
A TEXAS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM APPLICATION TO THE TEXAS
DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE; AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ACT AS THE CITY'S EXECUTIVE
OFFICER AND AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE IN ALL MATTERS PERTAINING TO THE CITY'S
PARTICIPATION IN THE TEXAS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City Of Llano desires to develop a viable community, including decent
housing and a suitable living environment and expanding economic opportunities, principally for persons of low
and moderate income; and WHEREAS, certain conditions exist which represent a threat to pubiic health and
safety; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the City of Llano to avail itself of the 2015 Texas
Community Development Planning Program;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE OF CITY OF LLANO, TEXAS:

1. That the City of Llano undertake a program to prepare the following planning effort(s}):
» Certifications, presentations, reports & publications

Base Fee: Mapping Land use, Housing, Population

Street Conditions

Wastewater Study (Collection and treatment)

Capital Improvements Program

Parks and Recreation

Digitized Base Map

* & & = & 9

2. That the requested amount of TXCDBG funds is a maximum of $ 32 145,

3. That a Texas Community Development Block Grant Program application for Planning/Capacity
Building fund is hereby authorized to be filed on behalf of the City with the Texas Department of
Agriculture and any other appropriate agencies as defined in the regulations.

4. That the City Council directs and designates the Mayor as the City's Chief Executive Officer and
Authorized Representative to act in all matters in connection with this application and the City's
participation in the Texas Community Development Block Grant Program.

5. That all funds will be used in accordance with all applicable federal, state, local and programmatic
requirements including but not lirited to procurement, environmental review, and civil rights
requirements.

6. That the city/county commits itself, if funded by Texas Community Development Biock Grant Program
to appropriate $6,340 as matching funds and as a demonstration of its local support to the planning
project.

Passed and approved this 2 day of February %9;3.;?
]

W (il iy, . .
> qu’Vo oA o

S g
g(} Mikel Vi[dell, Mayor
e’V M’j
Hlilam, City Settefary %

%,
KT



PUBLISHER’S AFFIDAVIT

THE STATE OF TEXAS,
COUNTY OF LLANO

On thi%(g&ﬁwday of M@[D_bﬂ’r _./9_01 4

Personally appeared before me the undersigned
authority Heather Wagner who states that she is the
editor of The Llano News, published at Llano,
Texas, Llano County, and upon being duly sworn
by me on oath states that the attached
advertisement is a true and correct copy of
advertising published in said newspaper in
_ ] consecutive issue(s] therefore on  the
following dates(sT:

/] A 14

and that the rate charged does not exceed the
lowest rate charged by this publication for
classified/public notice advertising nor the lowest

N

angt, Editor
SUBSCRIBED ANE'SWORN to before this
';a«gf:hday 01"%5/ f’/}')}’{eff“ NS O
/ QGiad PN S oppa

Notary Public in and for the Sfate of Texas

bk

A AA b A h s dbhhd bda

My Commission Expires
2 July 13, 2018

AR RAAAAAL RS 2440 o0 o 0 UlT Y.




Public Hearing Minutes

A public hearing was held on OQWMM_/ / 2014 at 930 p.m.

to discuss the submission of an application for a Texas Community Development Block
Grant (TxCDBG).

The Attendance List for the meeting is attached.

..... 9@ N ;ﬂa,m__ﬁ
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City of Llano

ATTENDANCE LIST

PUBLIC HEARING

Monday, December 1, 2014 at 5:30 PM

NAME ADDRESS TELEPHONE #
'T;ﬂ. L Mo /ﬁm D01 W Macal , Llgslo, 78643 |3a9-24d7-4158

Q«-«Dﬁ N L ’ 2772':{9%4 Ll Y 52y 047 L2 G

L et iy oo SHEFFven AVE 1140 Jes-297— Y6z
(7/4/,@5 Slunc /01 e Reo Jill s Bres I sY-5vE 5 sed
FRVIN /) ] |\ FET AT AN T |52 sy

JF/M o ﬁm%\

209 . Touvank

729 4235/

509 k. Soadsglone Lo
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AW,

(106 W /Mmm St Ucmo

A5 0
I 4 ) 30257,

7

/;

8 M@ 207 o m_u Az /g,v_) Foy 24250
£y Cyrea 10 Udro 0n ouumat 1d it 125008 AR
A \)\,w/(
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PUBLISHER’S AFFIDAVIT

THE STATE OF TEXAS,
COUNTY OF LLANO

On mi%ﬁjﬂ? day of /:Z})fuar}/ 2015

Personally appeared before me the undersigned
authority Heather Wagner who states that she is the
editor of The Liano News, published at Llano,
Texas, Liano County, and upon being duly sworn
by me on oath states that the attached
advertisement is a true and correct copy of
advertising published in said newspaper in
| comsceutives issue($) therefore on the
following dates(#5:

L A5 45

i, PP aﬂabie or revxe
dunng_egular business hours. 3

and that the rate charged does not exceed the
fowest rate charged by this publication for
classified/public notice advertising nor the lowest
rate chargcd commercial customers for similar

advertising,
- —A_""
cathe agnel @b
NI ORN to before this

SUBSCRIBED A

A5 dayoffgbmarygmé
ood J1 S ke ppoict

Notary Public in and for the Sta of Texas

..............
..................

YR
8\ CAROL M. SHEPPARD
My Commission Expires
% July 13, 2019

T YT TETYTYTOYYY




Citizen Participation for: Llano

Agency

Address

Llano County Mental Health Center

1447 Texas 71
Llano, TX 75643

Llano Housing Authority

1110 Berry Street
Llano, TX 78643

Green Street House

1301 Walnut Street
Llano, TX 78643

Salvation Army

501 N. 2" Street
Killeen, TX 76541

Habitat for Humanity

P.O. Box 1406
Marble Falls, TX 78654
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR™S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Aldermen
City of Llano. Texas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Llano, Texas, as of and for the year ended Septeraber 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Managemen(’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant o the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatemeni, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is o express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards. issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards required that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
staternents are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to oblain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
stalements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, inctuding the assessment of the risks of material
misstateruent of the financial statements, whether duc to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal controf relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial staterments in order 10
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinicn on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinien. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabieness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

in our opinion, the financial statements referred (o above present fairty, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Liano, Texas, as of September 30, 2013,
and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
MEMBER TEXAS SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
205 £ast Unsversaty, Ste 163, GEORGETOWN, TEXAS 78626 512-422-3700 FAX 512-240-3460 WEBSITE vy donellmancos cor
I




Mayor and City Council
City of Ltano

Page 2

Other Matters

Required Supplementary fnformation

Accounting principles generatly accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and
analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 through 8 and 42-43 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
governmental Accounting Standards Board. who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries. the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express and
opinien or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence t0 express an opinion or provide any assurance.

(Mther Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financiat statements that coflectively comprise the
City of Llano, Texas, Texas’ basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor
fund financial staiements, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget circular A-133, Audits of states, Local
Gaovernments, and Non-Profit Organizaiions, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
arc the responsibility of management and were derived from and refate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used 10 prepare the basic financial stalements. Such information as been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial siatements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconcifing such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used (o prepare the basic financial
statements or the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. tn our opinion, the combining and individual nenmajor
fund financial statlements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated i afl material respects in
relation 10 the basic financial staternents as a whole.

The introductory and statistical section have not been subjected 1o the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial stalements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them,

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

tn accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our reported dated May 3, 2014, on our
consideration of the City of Llano, Texas’ internal control over financial reporting an on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering city of Llano,
Texas™ internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Donald L. Allman, CPA, PC
Georgetown, Texas

May 5, 2014
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CITY OF LLANO
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Llano. we offer readers of the City’s financial stalements this narrative overview and
analysis of the financial statements of the City for the year ended Sepiember 30, 2013, Please read it in connection with
the independent auditor™s report on page 1. and City’s Basic Financial Statements which begin on page 9.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

= The assets ol the City exceeded its Habilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $22.461.109 (net
assels). Of this anmount, $2.513.277 (unrestricled net assets) may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations
tocitizens and credilors.

# The Cav's et assets increased by $626.874 as a resuit of this year's operauons.

< AtSeptember 3G, 20130 the City™s governmental funds reported combined ending fund bafances of $389.435, an
tnerease of $206.427 in comparison with the prior year.

# AU September 36, 2013, the City’s Enterprise Funds reported net assets of $12.551,434 an increase of $183.773
m comparison with the prior year.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annwal report consists of a series of financial statements. The government-wide financial statements include the
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities {on pages 9 through 11). These provide information abow the
activities of the City as a whole and present a fonger-tenm view of the City's property and debt obligations and other
financial maters. They reflect the flow of total econamic resources ina manner similar to the financiat reports of a
business enterprise.

Fuad financial statements (beginning on page 12) report the City's operations in more delail than the government-wide
statements by providing mfoemation about lhe City's most signidicant tunds.  For vovernmental activities. these
statements tell how services were financed in the short term as well as what resources remain for future spending. They
reflect the Now of current financial resources. and supply the basis for tax fevies and the appropriations budget.

The notes 1o the linancial satements (starting on page 24) provide narrative explanations or additional data needed for
full disclosure in the government-wide statersients or the fund financial statements.

The Budgetary Comparison Schedule (operating fund) and the Schedule of Funding Progress for the Retirement Plan are
presented as required supplementary information on pages 42 and 43

L)



Reporting the City as a Whole
The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

The analysis of the Cuy s overall financial condition and operations begins on page 9. 1ts primary purpose is to show
whether the Cily is better off or worse off as a result of the year's activities. The Statement of Net Assets includes ali
the City’s assets and Hiabilities at the end of the year while the Statement of Activities inciudes all the revenues and

expenses generated by the Cuy’s operations during the year. These apply the accrual basis of accounting which is the
basis used by private sector companies.

Allof the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. Al
the city’s assets are reported whether they serve the current year or fuiure years. Liabilities are considered regardless of
whether they must be paid 1 the current of futuse years.

These two statements report the City’s net assets and changes in them. The City’s net assets (the difference between
assels and habiities) provide one measure of the City's financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or
decreases m the Caty s net assets are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. To fully
assess the overall healih of the City, however, you should consider other factors as well, such as chaapes in the City's
customers or 1ts property tax base and the condition of the City's facilities.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the City as two kinds of activity:

» Governmental activity = Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including the public safety. public
warks. municipal court and administration. Property taxes, user charges, sales tax and franchise tax {inance
most of these activities

~  Business-type activity - The City’s electric, water and sewer system and sanitation are reported as a business-
type aclivity since the fees charged to customers cover the cost of services provided

Reporting the City's Muost Significant Funds

Fund Financiul Statemenis

The fund financial stasements provide detailed information about the most significant funds - not the Cily as a whole.
Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending lor particular
purpases.

The Cuty has two kinds ol funds:

#  Governmental funds — All of the City’s basic services are reported in povernmenual funds. These use modified
accrual accounting (a method that measure the receipt and disbursement of cash and all other financial assets
that cane be readily converted 1o cash) and report balances that are avaifable for future spending.  The
governmentat tund statements provide a detailed short-term view ol the City's general operations and the basic
services it provides. We describe the differences between goveromental activities (reported in the Statement of
Net Assels and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in Note 11 1o the financial statements.

Proprietary funds - Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally reported in proprietary
funds. The City’s utidity fund (Elfectric, Water, Sewer and Sanitation) 15 a business-type activity and provides
both long and short-term financial snformation.



COVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Our analysis focuses en the net assets (Table 1) and changes in net assets (Table 1) of the City's governmental and
husiness-type activities.

Net asscis of the City’s governmental aclivities increased from $9.5468.574 10 $9,905.675. Unrestricted net assets — the
part of net assels that can be used 1o finance day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants,
enabling legistation, or ather legal requirements — was $325,379 at September 30, 2013. This increase in governmenial
act assets was the resull of three factors. First, the City’s revenues exceeded the expenditures by $44 1,101, Second, the
City paid principal on fong-term debt of $74.142 and acquired capital assets in the amount of $614.536. Third. the City
recorded depreciation in the amount of $586.081

Net assels ol the City's business-type activities incressed from $12.365.661 to $12.531.434. Unrestricted nel assets
were 2187898 ar September 3G, 2013 This increase in business-type net assets was the resuit of net income of
$185.773.

Table §
City of Ltano

NET ASSETS

in thousands

Goveromental Bustness-Type TQTALS
AcLivilies Activities Primary Government
2013 2 2013 2012 20 2012
CurrentandRestngled Assets S 778 S 513 5 3,477 ) 3.69% 5 4,25% 5 4,208
“Capiial Assets 5 9,837 5 49,582 }_».171(3,385 516,397 S 26,217 4 2% 939
Total Assets "s w0610 " 10,095 "¢ 19,862 "o 20.0%2 ) 30,4712 5 30,147
Lang-Term bia bilities 5 201 s 257 S 6.549 5 6,765 S 6.750 5 7,022
Other Llabidiies S 499 S 369 S 761 5 912 S 1,261 5 1,291
Total Latnlities 5 700 5 626 S 7.311 5 7,687 5 8.011 ’1‘ 8,313
Nel Assers 7
frvested (nCapial Ay ets
Net ofRelate d De bt S 9,952 S 9,2%9 4 9,620 5 9,112 S 19.172 5 18,611
Restricted S 32 S 32 5 743 S 565 5 775 5 %97
Unrestncted S 376 $ 137 S 2,188 S 2,489 S 2514 5 2,626
Tatal Het Assets S 9,910 4 9,468 S 12,551 S 12,366 WS 22,461 S 21,834




Revenues:
Charges for Services
Property Tax

Satey Tax

Franchise Tax

Qperanng Grants & Contribution

Capital Grants & Contributions
lavestment Earmings
Other Taxes
tMiscelaneaus
Total Revenue
xpeases
City Council
Genersl Admimnisteation
M3zin Streel
Pohce
Code fnforcement
fire
Recreation and Parks
Lantex Theater
Cemetary
Muricipal Cournt
Golf Course
Street
Ao
Other
Waler
Sewer
Sanstaban
tiectnic
Other Unlity
De bt Serwce
total Cxpenses

increase v Nel Assets Belore

Tabie tl
Cityof Llano
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

in thousands

Transfer & Capial Contnibutons $

Capnal Contntbutions
Transiers

Totals

Net Change

Net Assels, Beginnmg

Net Assels, Ending

Governmental Business-Type TOTALS
Achivibies Agtivities PrimaryGovernment
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
s 887 S 748 S 7,412 5 7.405% 5 8,299 S 8,153
61sS 523 615 593
o 702 710 702
80 76 80 76
16 16
a6} B 188 651 8
g 7 7 7 15 14
80 83 80 83
129 184 129 184
S 2,972 S 2,417 S 7,607 S 7.412 5 10,579 5 9,829
S 25 S 26 5 5 S 25 5 26
823 888 823 888
67 125 67 125
842 ga? B42 847
6 ai G 43
99 6% G5 65
190 394 190 354
& 9 6 9
69 80 69 80
89 61 89 61
3156 aaj 356 aal
43 514 %43 514
493 arh 493 425
15 a; 19 42
844 696 844 5906
513 558 513 558
631 540 611 540
3.4%9 3.762 31,459 1,762
383 406 383 a06
G 12 295 290 304 302
) 3,828 S 3,932 50 6,125 5 6,252 _$ (3.953" 510,184
{856 S (1,519%) $ 1,482 s 1.1606 5 626 S (355}
s S 5 S 84 s S 84
1,297 1,452 {1.297) {1.45%2)
S 1,397 S 1452 S {L29n 5 (1,368 5 S B4
441 s (64} 5 185 S (208} S 626 S {21y
9,469 9,533 12,366 12,574 21,835 22,107
S 9910 S 9,409 5 12,551 S 12,366 S 2?,461“ $ 21,835
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The cost of all governmental activities this year was $3.827.558. However, as shown in the Statement of Activities on
page 10. the amount that our taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities through City taxes was only $614.461

because the other costs were paid by sales tax ($710.056). other tax ($160,194), user charges ($886.498), operating and
capital grants ($463.294) . and other miscellaneous ($128.539).

THE CITY 'S FUNDS

As the City completed the year. its governmental funds (as presented in the balance sheet on page 12) reported a
combined fund balance of $389.435. which is more than last year’s total of $183,013. Included in this year’s total

change in fund balance is an increase of $206.422 in the City’s General Fund. This increase in the General Fund
balance was caused by the excess of revenues over expenditures.

The City adopted the General Fund Budget. The City did amend the original budget several times during the year;
actual revenues were more than budgeted amounts and expenditures were less than budgeted amounts.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Al September 30. 2013, the City had the following amounts invested in capital assets, net of depreciation:

CAPITAL ASSETS

in thousands

Governmental Business Type TOTALS
Activities Acuvities Primary Government
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Land S 1,627 S 1627 S 483 ) 483 S 2.110 S 2,110
Construction in Progress 667 164 382 a5 1,049 209
Disubution & Collection Systems 21.393 21,143 21,393 21,143
Buildings & Improvements 6,929 6,799 6,929 6,799
Equipment 3,752 3.645 3,123 3,096 6.875 6,741
Inlrastructure 4.900 4,900 4,900 4.900

Total Capital Assets S 17875 S 17,135_. $ 25,381 S 24,767 S 43,256 S 41,902
Less Accumulated Depreciation  $ (8,043) S (7.554) S (8,996) S {8,410) S {17,039} N (15.,964)

Capital Assets, Net _S____9,832 5 9,581 S 16,385 S 16,357 S 26.217_ . S 25,938_

More detailed information about the City’s capital assets is presented in Note F and G to the financial statements.



DEBT

At September 30. 2013. the City had the following outstanding debt:

OUTSTANDING DEBT

in thousands

Governmental Business-Type TOTALS
Aclivities Activities Primary Government
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Bonds Payable $ S S 6,502 S 6.628 S 6.502 S 6628
Notes Payable 74 96 263 417 337 513
Capital Leases Payable 114 166 114 166
Compensated Absences 91 69 91 69
Total Outstanding Debl S 279 S 331 S 6,765 5 7,045 S 7.044 S 7376

For governmental activities. the City paid $22.191 in principal on the outstanding long-term debl and issues $51.951 in
notes payable and capital {eases.

For business-type activities, the City paid $126.000 in principal on the outstanding long-term debt and issues $154.603
in notes payable.

More detailed information about the City’s long-term tabilities is presented in Notes H, 1. J and K to the financial
stalements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City’s elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2014 budget and tax
rates. The major factors are the assessed property valuation and population growth. These indicators were taken into
account when adopting the General Fund budget for 2014, Amounts available for appropriation in the General Fund
budget are $3.743.749 and expenditures are estimated 1o be $3.743.672.

If these estimates are realized, the City’s budgetary General fund balance is expecled to remain about the same by the
close of 2014.

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed 10 provide out citizens. laxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a general
overview of the Citys finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it receives. [f you have questions

about this report or need additional financial information. contact the City’s business office, at City of Llano, Llano,
Texas.



CITY OF LLANO

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

SEPTEMBER 30. 2013

Primary Government

EXHIBIT A-1

Component Unit

Business Nonmajor
Governmental Type Component
Activities Achvities Total Unit
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 353,258 5 252,427 S 605,685 5 107,785
Investments - Current 125,772 1,486,410 1,612,182 274,691
Recewables (net of allowance for uncollecnbles) 204,089 775,887 979,976 204,574
Due frorn Component Unil 48,571 48571 .
Due from Primary Government 27,164
Inventories 46,562 218,645 265,207
Restricted Assets:
Restricted Assel - Debt Servece 421,521 421,521
Resincted Asset  Capial improvements 321,289 321,289
Capital Assets:
Land 1,626,981 482,590 2,109,571 219,000
Infrastructure, nel 2.769.311 14,867,794 17,637,105 95,625
Buildings, netl 4,155,124 4,155,124 19,886
Improvements other than Buildings, net 2,409,811
Machinery and Equipment, net 612,779 652,873 1,265,652 15,800
Construchon in Progress 667,331 382,255 1,049,586
Total Assets S 10.609.778 $ 19,861,691 S 30,471,469 5 3,374,336
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 199,318 172,004 371,322 1,805
Intergovernmental Payable
Due (0 Component Unit 27.164 27164
Oue lo Primary Government 48,571
Accrued Interest Payable 11,940 11,940
Deferred Revenues 41,266 41,266
Notes Payable  Current 23,680 85,330 109,010
Other Current Liabilihes 153,097 361,527 514,624
Noncurrent Ligbihties
Due Within One Year 54,481 130,000 184,481
Due in More Than One Year 201,097 6,549,456 6,750,553 1,979,943
Total Liabilities 700,103 7,310,257 8,010,360 2,030,319
NET ASSETS
lnvested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 9,552,268 9,620,726 19,172,994 780,179
Restncted for
Restricted for Speaal Reveaue 32,028 32,028
Restricted for Debt Service 421,521 421,521
Restricted for Capital Improvements 321,289 321,289
Unrestricted Nel Assets 325,379 2,187,898 2,513,277 563,838
Total Net Assets S 95909675 S 12,551,434 S 22,461,109 1,344,017

The notes 1o the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

9
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General Revenues:

Taxes:

Property Taxes

Sales Taxes

Franchise Taxes

Other Taxes

Grants and Contributions

Miscellaneous Revenue

Investment Earaing
Transfers in (Out)
Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Assels

Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

CITY OF LLANO

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2013

614,461 614,461 -
710,056 710,056 250.854
19,753 79,753 -
80.451 80.451 -
128.539 136.759 265,298
8.360 6.866 15,226 27.386
1.297.247 (1,297.247) .
2.918.867 (1,153.622) 1,765,245 278,240
441,101 185,773 626,874 83.262
9,468,574 12365661 21.834,235 1,260,755
S 9.909.675 S 12551434 S S 1,344,017

22,461,109

The notes 1o the Financial Statements are an integral partof this statement



EXHIBIT C-1

CITY OF LLANO
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30. 2013

Total
General Other Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $353,258 S - $ 353,258
Investments - Current 125,772 - 125,772
Properly Taxes Recewable 41,266 . 41,266
Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (credit) (1,506) . (1,506}
Sales Tax Hotel Motel Taxreceivable 84,945 84,945
Accounts Receivable, Golf, Court Fines 46,177 - 46,177
intergovernmental Receivables 33,207 33,207
Due from Other Funds 32,028 32,028
Due from Component Unit 48,571 - 48,571
Inventones 46,562 - 46,562
Total Assets $778,252 532,028 $ 810,280
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $199,318 S $199.318
Salaries, payroll taxes & benehts Payable 41,860 41,860
Intergovernmental Payable
Due to Other Funds
Due to Component Unit 27,164 27,164
Delerred Revenues 41,266 41,266
Other Current Liabihties 111,237 - 111,237
Total Liabilities $420.845 S $420.845
FUNO BALANCES
Nonspendable S 46,562 5 S 46,562
Restricted Fund Balance
Federal orState Funds Grant Restnction 32,028 32,028
Unassigned Fund Balance 310,845 - 310,845
Tolal Fund Balances $357,407 $32,028 $389,435
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $778,252 $32,028 $ 810,280

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



EXHIBITC-2

CITY OF LLANO
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30.2013

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 5 389.435

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not finanaial resources and therefore are not reported in 9250809
governmental funds. Atthe beginning of the year, the cost of these assels was $17,874,722 and the accumulated

depreciation was $8,043,196. {n addition, long-term frabilitces. including bands payable, are not due and

payablein the current period, and. therefore are not reported as habilites in the funds  The net effect of

including the beginning balances for capital assets {net ol depreciation) and long-term debtin the governmentat
aclivities is toincreasenet assets

Current year capital outlays and long-term debt principal payments are expenditures 1n the fund (inanaal 665079
statements, but they should be shown as increases in capital assets and reductiens n (ong-term debt in the

government-wide financial statements  The net effect ol including the 2013 capital outlays and debt principal

payments is to increase net assets

The 2013 depreciation expense increases accumulated depreciation The net effect of the current yeae's (489,482
depreciationis todecrease netassets

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary 1o convert{rom the modifred accrual basis of 91,8134
accounting to accrual basis of accounting  Theseinclude recognizing deferred revenue as revenue, eliminaung

interfund transacttons, and recognizing the liabdwties associated with maturing long-term debt and interest The

net effect of thesereclassifications and recognitions is to increase nel 3ssets

Net Assets of Governmental Activities

s 9.909.675

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF LLANO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Total
General Other Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES:
Property Taxes S 614,461 5 . $ 614,461
General Sales and Use Taxes 710,056 - 710.056
Franchise Tax 79,753 79,753
Other Taxes 80,451 80,451
Licenses and Permits 11,584 - 11,584
Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants 463,294 463,294
Charges for Services 733,955 733,955
fines 50,087 . 50,087
{nvestment Earnings 6,866 6.866
Rents and Royalnes 79,366 79.366
Contributions & Donations from Private Sources 13,000 13.000
OtherRevenue 128,539 128.539
Total Revenues 52971412 5 B $2971,412
EXPENDITURES
City Council S 25.491 5 S 25.491
General Administraton 769,644 769.644
Main Street 66,748 66,748
Police 726,710 726,710
Municipai Court 88,575 88,575
Code Enforcement 5971 . 5971
Fire 88,938 88,938
Parks and Recreation 308.235 308,235
LantexTheater 5.564 5,564
Cemetery 69,137 69.137
Golf Course 324,020 324,020
Street 404,985 404,985
Airport 384539 384,539
Christmas Lighting 15,034 15.034
Depot Museum 8,125 8,125
DebtService:
Other Debt Principal 74,142 74,142
OtherDebtinterest 8419 8,419
Capital outlay:
Capital Outlay 739221 739,221
Total Expenditures $4,113,498 S _5_-4.113.498_
Excess (Deficiency)of Revenues Over {under) (1,142,086) (1,142,086
Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES):
Proceeds from Debt 51.261 51,261
Transfersin 51,297,247 1,297,247
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) $1,348,508 S 'S 1,348,508

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C-3 (Cont’d)
CITY OF LLANO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2013

Totat
General Other Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
Net Change in Fund Balances $ 206,422 - S 206,422
Fund Balance -October 1 {Beginning) 150,985 32,028 183,013
Fund Balance -September 30 (Ending) $ 357,407 $32,028 S 389,435

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



EXHIBIT C-4
CITY OF LLANO
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES. AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FfOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2013

Total Net Change in fund Balances - Governmental Funds S 206,422

Current year capitai outlays and fong-lerm debt principal payments are expenditures in the fund finanical 665,079
statements, but they should beshown as increases in capital assets and reductions in long-term debtin the

government-wide financial sttements The net effect of removing the 2012 capital oullays and debt pancipal

payments is to increase nel assets

Depreciation is notrecognized as an expense in governmental funds since it does not require the useof current (489,482)
financial resources Thenet effectof the current year's depreciationis todecreasenelassets

Various other reciassifications and eliminations are necessary to converl (rom the modilied accrual basis of 59,082
accountingto accrual basis of accounting These include recogni zing delerred revenue as revenue, adjusting

current year revenue to show lhe revenue earned from the current year’s @3 x levy, climunating inter fund

transactions, and recogmzingtheliabdities associatled with matucing fong-term debt and (nterest  The net efelct

of these reclassifications and recognitions 1s to decrease net assets

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

S 441,101

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement

16



EXHIBIT D-1
CITY OF LLANO

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30.2013
Business Type
ACtivines
Unlity
Fund
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents S 252,427
tnvestments - Current 1,486,410
Restricted Assets - Current:
Restricted Asset - Debt Service 421521
Restricted Asset - Capital Improvements 321,289
Accounts Receivable - Net of Uncollectible Allowance 775,887
Due [rom Other Funds
tnventories 218.645
Total Current Assets S 3,476,179
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Ltand 5 482,590
tofrastructure S 21,393,399
Machinery & Equipment 3,123,177
Construction in Progress 182,255
Accumulated Depreciation (8.995.909)
Total Noncurrent Assets S 16,385.912
Total Assets 19,861,691

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT D-1 (Cont’d)
CITY OF LLANO
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30.2013

Business Type

Activities
Utility
Fund
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 172,004
Salaries, payroll taxes and benefits payable 24,878
Compensated Absences Payable 31,594
Intergovernmental Payable
Due to Other Funds
Accrued Interest Payable 11,940
Notes Payable - Current 85,330
Bonds Payable - Current 130,000
Other Current Liabilities 305,055
Total Current Liabilities 760,801
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bonds Payable - Noncurrent 6,372.000
Notes Payable - Noncurrent 177.456
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 6,549 456
Total Liabiities 7.310.257
NET ASSETS
Investmentsin Capital Assets, Net of Debt 94,620,726
Restricted for Debt Service 421,521
Restricted for Capital improvements 321,289
Unrestricted Net Assets 2,187,898
Total Net Assets

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT D-2
CITY OF LLANO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013

Business Type

Activities
Utility
Fund
OPERATING REVENUES.
Charges for Water Services 5 949,194
Charges for Sewer Service 826.719
Charges for Sanitation Service 660,196
Charges for Electricity Service 4,658,335
Charges for Administration Services 98,038
Charges for Customer Convenience Station 61.775
Charges for Miscellaneous Services 89,948
Other Revenue 68,178
Total Operating Revenues S 7,412,383
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Administration:
pPersonnel Services - Salaries, Taxes, Benefils 210,778
Puchased Professional & Technical Services 9,579
Puchased Praperty Services 67,663
Other Operating Expenses 2.844
Supplies 13,466
Total Administration _S 304,330
Customer Convenience Station
personnel Services - Salaries, Taxes, Benefits 37.916
Purchased Professional & Technical Services 57,604
Purchased Property Services 223
Supphes 5,889
Total Customer Convenience Station s 101,632
Sanitation
Purchased Professional & Technical Services 616,253
Water Plant
Personnel Services -Salaries, Taxes, Benefits 380.314
Purchased Professional & Technical Services 90.424
Purchased Property Services 51,125
Supplies 73.622
Total Water Plant S 295,485
Water Distribution
Personnel Services -Salaries, Taxes, Benefits 115,685
Purchased Professional & Technical Services 26,291
Purchased Property Services 85.252
Supplies 11,032
Total Water Distribution ] 238,260
Sewer Plant )
Persannel Services - Salaries, Taxes, Benefits 53,230
Purchased Professional & Technical Services 25.390
Purchased Property Secvices 41,627
Supplies 13,372
Total Sewer Plant L3 133,619

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT D-2 (Cont'd)

CITY OF LLANO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30.2013

Business Type

Actiwvilies
Utihity
Fund
Sewer Collection
Personnel Services - Salaries and Wages 85496
Purchased Professional & Technical Services 9819
Purchased Propertly Services 571551
Supplies 12228
Total Sewer Collection s 165.094
Electric
Personnel Services - Salaries and Wages 171315517
Purchased Professional & Technical Services 1971634
Purchased Property Services 106,355
Supplies 30884
Total tlectric S 1388430
Depreciation 586081
Total Operaung Expenses $ 5829184
Operating Income S ) 1,583,199
MNON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Grants {Not Capital grants) 188.1%9
Investment Earnings 6,866
interest Expense - Non-Operatng (2495.204)
Total Non-Operating Revenue {Expenses) {100,179
Income Before Contrbutions & Translers ] 14831020
Capital Contributions
Teansfers Qut (1.291.247)
Change in Net Assels 185,773
Total Net Assets - October 1 {Beginning) 12,365,661
Total Net Assets - September 30 (Ending)

12,551,434

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT D-5
CITY OF LLANO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013

Business Type

ACtivities
Utihity
Fund
Cash Flows from QOperating Activilies:
Cash Received from User Charges S 7.681.900
Cash Received from Assessments - Other Serwvices
Cash Payments lo Employees lor Services (856.976)
Cash Payment lor Supphers [160,493)
Cash Payments lor Other Operating Expenses (4,301,963)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities < 2,162 468
Cash Flows from Non-Capatal Financing Acivities:
Operating Transfer Out S (1.297.247)
Cash Elows from Capital & Related Financing Activities
Acquisition of Capital Assets {614,536}
Capital Contributed by Other funds
Use of Restricted Assets 143,820
Interest Paid {295.204)
toan Proceeds
Lloan Payments (154.603)
Prinapal Payments Certificates of Obligation o {126,000}
Net Cash Provided by [Used for) Capital &
Related Financing Activitics (1.0465213)
Cash flows fromInvesting Activities.
Grants 188,159
Interest and Dividends on Investments 6,866
Net cash flows [rominvesting activities 195025
Net Increase {Decrease) 10 Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 213,723
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Year: 1646403
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year: S 2,060,126

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this staterent.
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EXHIBIT D-3 (Cont™d)

CITY OF LLANO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2013

Business Type

Activities
Utility
Fund
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided By Operating Activities
Operating Income: S 1,583,199
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating ncome
1o Net Cash Prowvided by Opcerating Aclivities: 586,081
Depreciation
Effect of Increases and Decreascs in Curcent
Assets and Liabilities.
Decrease (increase) 1n Recervables 269,517
Decrease (increase) in Inventories 19,187
Decrease (increase) in Due From Other Funds
Increase (decrease) in Accounts Payable (134,119)
Increase {decrease) in Accrued Wages (3.232)
Increase (decrease) in Compensated Absences
Inccease (decrease] in Intergovernmental {19,645)
Increase {decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 61,480
Net Cash Provided by Operating
Aclivities S 2.362,468

e ————

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT E-1

CITY OF LLANO
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Private Total
Purpose Pension
Trust Fund Trust fund

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents S 112 S 539
Investments - current 35137

Total Assets 35,249 539
MNET ASSETS
Unrestricted Net Assets s 35,249 5 539

Total Net Assets 315,249 539

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT E-2

CITY OF LLANO
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY FUND NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Private Total
Purpose Pension
Teust Fund Trust Fund

OPERATING REVENUES:

Inves tment Earnings 5 38 S

Other Revenue

Toatl Operating Revenues 38 A

Operating Income 38

Total Net Assets - October 1 (Beginning) 35,211 539
Total Net Ass ets - Septemmber 30 {Ending) 3 315,249 S 539

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF LLANO, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30,2013

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the City of Llano, Texas conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to
governments. The following is a summary of the more significant policies:

A. Reporting Entity — The Mayor and City Council is the level of government which has governance responsibilities
over all activities within the jurisdiction of the City of Llano. ‘The City is not included in any other governmental
“reporting entity™ as defined in Section 2100. Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting,
Standards. since the Mayor and Aldermen are elected by the public and have decision making authority. the power
1o designate management. the responsibility to significantly influence operations and primary accountability for
fiscal matters.

Llano Economic Development Corporation — The Llano Economic Development Corporation (the Corporation) was
established in 1994 under the Development Corporation Act of 1979. Anticle 5190.6. Tex. Rev. Civ. Stat. Ann.. as
amended. Directors of the Corporation are removable by the City Council of the City of Llano at will. the overall
economic development plan of the corporation must be approved by the City Council of the City of Llano. and the
budget for each forthcoming fiscal year must be approved by the City Council of the City of Llano. Since the
Corporation is financially accountable to the City. it is treated as a component unit of the City and is reported as part
of the overall financial reporting entity of the city.

8 Government-Wide and Fund-Financial Statements

The Stalement of Net Assets and the Stalement of Activities are government-wide financial statements. They report
information on all of the City of Llano non-fiduciary activities with most of the inter-fund activities removed.
Governmental activities include programs supported primarily by taxes, sales tax. franchise tax. municipal court
fines, charges for services and other miscellaneous revenues. Business-lvpe activities include operations that rely to
a significant extent on fees and charges for services

The Statement of Activities demonsirates how other people or entities that participate in programs the City operates
have shared in the payment of the direct cosls. The ““charges lor services” column includes payments made by

parties that purchase. use. or directly benefit from goods or services provided by a given function or segment of the
City.

{nter-fund activitics between governmental funds appear as due toldue froms on the Governmental Fund Balance
Sheet and as other resources and other uses on the governmental fund Statement of Revenues. Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance. All inter-fund transactions betwecn governmental funds are eliminated on the
government-wide statements. Inter-fund activities between governmental funds and fiduciary funds remain as due
to/due froms on the government-wide Statement ol Activities

The fund financial statements provide reports on the financial condition and results of operations for two fund
categories — governmental and proprietary. The City considers some governmental funds major and reports their
financial condition and results of operations in a separate column

Proprictary funds distinguish operaling revenues and expenses [rom non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s
principal ongoing operalions. All other revenues and expenses are non-operating.

[
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C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
The government-wide (inancial statements use the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless
of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are

levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements use the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, only current assets. current liabilities and fund balances
are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present netincreases and decreases in current
assets (i.e. revenues and other financing sources and expenditures and other financing uses).

The modified accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they become both
measurable and available, and it recognizes expenditures in the accounting period in which the fund liability is
incurred, if measurable. except for un-matured interest and principal on long-term debt. which is recognized when
due. The expenditures related to certain compensated absences and claims and judgments are recognized when the
obligations are expected to be liquidated wilh expendable available financial resources. The City considers all
revenues available if they are collectible within 60 days after year end.

Revenues from local sources consist primarily of property taxes. Property tax revenues and revenues received from
the State are recognized under the “Susceptible to accrual™ concept; that is, when they are both measurable and
available. The City considers them “available™ if they will be collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year.
Miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenue when received in cash because they are generally not measurable

until actually received. Investment earnings are recorded as earned, since they are both measurable and available.

Grant funds are considered to be carned to the extent of expenditures made under the provisions of the grant.
Accordingly. when such funds are received. they are recorded as deferred revenues until related and authorized
expenditures have been made. I batances have not been expended by the end of the project period, grantors
sometimes require the City to refund all or part of the unused amount.

D. Fund Accounting

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

I. The General Fund — The general fund is the City’s primary operating {und. It accounts for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund type(s):

Government Funds:

1. Special Revenue Funds — The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.
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Proprietary Fund:

1. Enterprise Fund — The Utility Fund is operated as an Enterprise Fund.

Fiduciary Funds:

1. Private Purpose Trust and Agency Funds — Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund and the Firemen's Retlief Fund are

operated as Fiduciary Funds.

Other Accounting Policies

t

In the government-wide financial statements in the fund financial statements. long-term debt and other long-
term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable povernmental activities. business-type activities, or
proprictary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges
and amortized over the term of the related debt.

in the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognized bond premiums and discounts, as well as
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources, while discounts on debt
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance cosls, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

All inventories are valued at cost using the lirst in/tirst-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of governmental funds
are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Capital assets, which include land, buildings. furniture and equipment, are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets
are defined by the City as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5.000 and estimated useful life in
excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assetor malerially extend assets

lives are nol capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed.



Buildings, furniture and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Assets Year
Infrastructure S0
Distribution & Collection 40-50
Buildings 40-50
Improvements 10-40
Equipment 5-10
Vehicles 5

Pursuant to GASB Statement Number 34, an extended period of deferral is available before the requirement 1o
record and depreciate infrastructure assets (e.g.. roads. bridges. and similar items) acquired before the

implementation date becomes effective. Therefore, infrastructure assets acquired prior to October 1, 2001 have
not yet been capitalized.

4. Vacalion leave and sick leave is earned by each full-time employee. Vacation leave is earned at the rate of 10
days per year for employees with | to 4 years of service, and 12 days per year with 5 to 9 years of service, 15
days per ycar with 10-14 years of service, I8 days with 15-19 years of service, and 21 days per year with 20
years or more of service. City policy allows unused vacation to be carried over al the beginning of the calendar
year up lo a maximum of 24 days.

5. When the City incurs an expense for which il may use either restricted or unrestricted assets, it uses the
restricted asscts first whenever they will have to be returned if they arc not used.

6. The original budgel is adopted by the City Council prior to the beginning of the fiscal year through passage ol
an ordinance. The budget includes proposed expenditures and the means ol financing them.

Budgeted amounts for expenditures {rom the various (unds may not exceed the beginning balances of those
funds plus the anticipated revenues for the fiscal year The final amended budge has been presented in this
report. Unencumbered appropriation lapse at the end of each year.

7. The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepled accounting principles requires
management 1o make estimates and assumptions that alfect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during (he reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE Il. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

A. Deposits and Investments

The funds of the City must be deposited and invesled under the terms ofa contract, contents of which are set out in
the Depository Contract Law. The depository bank places approved pledged securities for safekeeping and trust
with the City’s agent bank in an amount sufficient to protect City funds on a day-to-day basis during the period of
the contract. The pledge of approved securities is waived only to the extent of the depository banks™ dollar amount
of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC™) insurance.



At September 30, 2013, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits was $605,685 and the bank balance was
$716.070. The carrying amount of the Llano Economic Development Corporation’s deposit was $107.785 and the
bank balance was $107.785. The City's cash deposits held at Arrowhead Bank, Liano National Bank and First
State Bank at September 30, 2013 and during the year ended September 30, 2013 were entirely covered by FDIC
insurance or by pledged collateral held by the City’s agent bank in the City’s name.

The Public Funds Investment Act (Government Code Chapter 2256) contains specific provisions in the areas of
investment practices, management reports and establishment of appropriate policies. Among other things, it
requires the City to adopt, implement, and publicize an investment policy. That policy must address the following
areas: (1) safety of principal and liquidity. (2) portfolio diversification, (3) allowable investments, (4) acceptable
risk levels, (5) expected rates of return, (6) maximum allowable staled maturity of portfolio investments, (7)
maximum average dollar-weighted maturity allowed based on the stated maturity date for the portfolio, (8)
investment staff quality and capabilities, (9) and bid solicitation preferences for certificates of deposit.  Statutes
authorize the City to invest in (1) obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain U.S. agencies, and the State of Texas; (2)
certificates of deposit, (3) certain municipal securities, (4) money markel savings accounts, (5) repurchase
agreements, (6) bankers acceptances, (7) mutual funds, (8) investiment pools, (9) guaranteed investment contracts,
(10) and common trust funds. The Actalso requires the City to have independent auditors perform test procedures
related 10 investment practices as provided by the Act. The City is in substantial compliance with the requirements
of the Act and with local policies.

The carrying value of investments at September 30. 2013 was $1.933.471 (TexPool Investment Pool). Local
government investment pools operate in a manner consistent with the SEC's Ruse 2a7 of the lnvestment Company
Act of 1940. Local government investment pools use amortized cost rather than market value to report net assets Lo

compute share prices. Accordingly, the fair value of the position in these pools is the same as the value of the
shares in each pool.

Policies Governing Deposits and [nvestments

In compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act. the City has adopted a deposit and investment policy. That
policy does address the following risks:

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits: This is the risk that in the event ol bank failure. the City's deposits may not be
returned 1o it. The City was not exposed to custodial credit risk since its deposits at year-end and during the vear
ended September 30, 2013 was covered by depository imnsurance ov by pledge collateral held by the City's agent
bank in the City’s name.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments: This is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty. the City
will nol be able to recover the value of s investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. Investments are subject 1o custodial credit risk only if they are evidenced by securities that exist in
physical or book entry form. Thus positions in external investment pools are not subject to custodial credit nsk
because they are not evidenced by securities that existin physical or book entry form.

Other Credit Risk: There is the risk thal an issuer or other counterparty Lo an investment will not fulfil its
obligations. To minimize credit risk, TexPool Investment Pool invests only in investments authorized under the
Public Funds Investment Act. TexPool's portfolio has low market (credit) risk due to restrictions on weighted
average maturity and maximum maturity of any one investment. The investment manager is required (o maintain a
stable $1.00 net asset value and must take immediate action if the net asset value of the portfolio falls below $.995
or rises above $1.005.



B. Propenty Taxes

Property laxes are levied by October 1 and are delinquent if not paid before February 1 of the year following the
year in which imposed. On January 1 of each year, alax lien attaches to the property to secure the payment of all

taxes, penalties and interest ultimately imposed. Property tax revenues are considered available when they become
due or past due and receivable within the current period.

The City contracted with the Llano County Appraisal District for the appraisal and with Llano County for the
collection of taxes. For the 2012 tax roll. the assessed valuation was $133.639,384 and the tax rate was $.39 per

$100 valuation (general fund only)

Court Fines and Fees Receivable

With the implementation of GASB Statement Number 34, the City has determined the amount of court fines and
fees receivable 1o be $87.026. Based on historical collection rates for the various courts, the City has booked an
allowance for uncollectible court fines and fees of $62.133 resulting in a net receivable of $24.893.

Notes Recetvable — Component Unit

On Oclober 3, 2008 the Llano Economic Development Corporation loaned the Bethany Assisted Living
Incorporated $50.000. Accrued interest only was due and payable from October 3. 2008 through October 3. 2010
at a rate of 5.25%. Beginning October 4, 2010 principal and interest are due in monthly installments for a period of
S years. The loan is secured by a deed of trust. The balance of the loan at September 30, 2013 was $22.408.

On June 24, 2009 the Llano Economic Development Corporation loaned SAANCO. Inc. $190,000. Accrued
interest only was due and payable quarterly from October 1, 2009 through October 1. 2010 at an interest rate ol
4.25%. Beginning January |, 2011 principal and interest are due in quarterly installments in the amount of $6.530
continuing until July 1, 2019. The loan is sccured by a security agreement that includes personal property and all
proceeds. The balance of the loan at September 30. 2013 was $144.242.

On July 17. 2012 the Llano Economic Development Corporation loaned Terry J. Wootan $282.000 at an interest

rate of 4 5%. Beginning August 17. 2012 monthly payments in the amount of $1,784.07 are due on the 17" of each

month continuing until July 17.2017. The loan was paid in full on 8/7/13. The balance ol the loan at September
30. 2013 was $0

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets represent cash that has been set aside in the Utility Fund for future payment of the debt.
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F. Land, Structures and Equipment-Proprietary Fund

A summary of changes in {ixed assets for the enterprise fund appears below:

land and land Rights

Distibution and Collection Systems

Equipment

Conslruction Workin Progress
Totals

Accumulated Depreciation

Fixed Assets, Net

G. Capital Asset Aclivily

Balance Balance

10/01/12 Additions Deletions 09/30/13
482,590 S - S $ 482,590
21,142,940 250,459 21,393,399
3,096,216 26,961 3,123,177
45,139 337,116 382,255
24,766,885 $ 614,536 S $ 25,381,421
(8,409,828) (586,081) (8.995.909)
16,357,057 S 28,455 5 S 16.385512

Capital asset activity for the City for the year ended September 30, 2013 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Land
Buildings and Improvements
Equipment
Infrastructure
Construction Work 1n Progress
Totals at Historic Cost
Less Accumulated
Deprectation for
Buttdings and Improvements
Equipment
Infrastructure

Total Accumul ated Oepreciation

Governmental Activilies

Capital Assets, Net

Primary Government

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance
$ 1,626,981 S 1,626,981
$ 6,799,454 $ 129,046 $  6.928.500
S 3,644,695 $ 106,994 $ 3,751,689
S 4,500,221 S $ 4,900,221
S 164,150 S 503,181 5 S 667,331
S 17135501 $ 739,221 5 S 17.874.722
(2,753.823) (19,553} (2.773.376)
(2.798,270) {340,640} (3.138.910)
(2.001,621) {129,289) (2,130,910}
S (7.553,714) $ (489.482) S (8,043,196)
S  9581,787 $ 249,739 3

S 9,831,526
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Capital assel activities of the Llano Economic Development Corporation were as follows:

Component Unit

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance
Component Unit Activities:
Land S 219,000 S - S 219,000
Other Capital Assets:
Building and improvements 2,498,280 S - 2,498,280
Distribution & Collection Systems 125,000 125,000
Equipment 15,800 S - 15,800
Construction Work 1n Progress + > - S 3 -
Total S 2,858,080 S - S 5 2,858,080
Less Accumulated Depreciation for
Distribution & Collection Systems {26.250) {3.125) (29,375}
Building and Improvements (2,817) (49.966) 152,783)
Component Unit Activities
Caprtal Assets, Net S 2,829,013 S {53.091) S ) S 2,775,922

H. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

A summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended September 30, 2013 follows



Beginning Ending Due Within

Balance Additions Retirements Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:
Notes Payable -
Llano National Bank S 60,900 S 14,275 S 46,625 § 15,542
Arrowhead Bank
JP Morgan Chase 35,191 7.916 27,275 8,138
Capital leases
John Deere Credit 25,670 6,045 19,625 6,410
Oshkosh Capual 64,196 31,319 32,877 32877
Yamaha 76,187 14,587 61,600 15,194
S 262,144 S - S 74,142 $ 188,002 S 78,161
Compensated Absences 68834 22,422 - 91,256
Governmental Activitiy
Long-Term Debt $ 330978 S 22,422 S 74,142 ‘S 279,258 S 78,161
Business-Type Acuvities
Bonds Payable
Revenue Bonds - Series 1998 S 1626000 S S 36,000 $ 1,590,000 S 37,000
Certificates of Obligation
Sernies 2003 1,650,000 55.000 1.595.000 57,000
Certificates of Obligation
Series 2008 3352,000 35,000 3,317,000 36,000
Total 8onds Payable $ 6628000 S S 126,000 S 6,502,000 S 130,000
Notes Payable
Arrowhead Bank 41655 41,655
LCRA
tlano National Bank 49652 39,598 10,054 10,054
JP Morgan Chase 326,082 73,350 252732 75276
Business Type Actiwity
Long-Term Debt S 7,045.389 S - S 280,603 S 6,764,186 S 215330

Revenue Bonds and Certificates of Obligation

The City issued $2,000.000 Waterworks and Sewer Syslem Revenue Bonds - series 1998 for improvements to the
water system. The Bonds were issued al an interest rale of 4.5% through the Department of Agriculture — Rural
Utilities Service. The Bonds are payable from and secured by a first lien on and pledge of the Net Revenues of the
System. The Bonds may be redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities, at the option of the City, at par plus
accrued  interest to  the  date fixed for  redemption, as a whole or in  part
The City issued $2,145,000 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation — Series 2003 for
improvements to the water system. The Certificates were issued at an interest rate of 4.5% through the Department
of Agriculture - Rural Utilities Service. The certificates are payable from and secured by an ad valorem tax levied
on all taxable property in the City and further secured by and payable from a first lien on and pledge of the Net
Revenues of the System. Since the City anticipates that the Enterprise (Utility) Fund will provide the annual debt
service of the certificates, the Certificates are shown as a long-lerm obligation of the Enterprise (Utility) Fund.



The City issued $3.476,000 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation — Series 2008 for
construction of a new wastewater treatment facility. The Certificates were issued at an interest rate of 4.125%
through the Department of Agriculture — Rural Utilities Service. The Certificates are payable from and secured by
an ad valorem tax levied on all taxable property in the City and further secured by and payable from a first lien on
and pledge of the Net Revenues of the System. Since the City anticipate the Enterprise (Utility) Fund will provide
the annual debt service of the certificates, the Certificates are shown as a long-term obligation of the Enterprise
(Utility) Fund.

Debt service requirements are as follows:

September 30 Principal Interest Total
2014 130,000 281,389 411,389
2015 134,000 275,678 409,678
2016 138,000 269,795 407,795
2017 141,000 263.738 404,738
2018 144,000 257,505 401,505
2019-2022 626,000 964,808 1992313
2023-2027 901,000 . 988,926 1,889,926
2028-2032 1,063,000 832,727 1,895,727
2033-2037 1,268,000 584,356 1,852,356
2038-2042 1,957,000 494,880 2,451,880
Totals: 5 6,502,000 5 5,213,802 S 12,117,307

The debt agreements related 1o the Series 1998 bonds and the 2003 and 2008 certificates of obligation contain the
requirement that the City establish and maintain a Bond Reserve Fund. Deposits shall be made monthly in to the
Reserve Fund for 120 months from the date of delivery of the bonds. Those deposits should be in approximately
equal monthly installments in such an amount as to accumulate a balance cqual (o the average annual principal and
interest requirements of the outstanding debt. The average annual debt service requirement is approximately
$109.845 for the Series 1998 bonds, $147,812 for the 2003 certificates of obligation and will be $182.294 for the
2008 certificate of obligation. The City has established a reserve fund and is in compliance with this provision.
Notes and Installments Payable

The following is a summary of notes and installments payable:

Balance at
9/30/13
GENERAL LONG TERM DEBT ACCOUNT GROUP
Long-term note payable to Uano National Bank - #6027399 Payable (romthe general fund for he purchase of, and
secured by, improvements to the golf course; original principal $150,000, duen montly instailments through
March 1, 2017, with the payment to be adjusted each November 1; current payment amount $1.132, interest
adjusted annually at primefess 1%; currentinterest 4 0% S 46,625
Long-term note payable to JIP Morgan Chase - #1000135711 Payable (rom the general fund foc 2011 Ford
Expedition originial principal $41.015; due in monthiy installments of $733 through December 2.2016, interest at
279% 27,275
Long-term note payable to Llano National Bank - #612888-8. Payable from general fund for street sweeper,
original principal $146,530, due in monthly installments of $2,714 through December 15, 2012, interest at4 25%
Yotal General Long-Term Debt 5 73,900



UTILITY FUNDS

Long-term notes payable to JP Morgan Chase - H1000135711 for the purchase of a Vac-Con Vactor Suction Truck;
original principal $290,455; due in monthly instal!ments of $5.192 through 12/02/2016, interest at 2.79%

Long-ltermnote payable to Llana National Bank - #6134969 for the purhcase of 2008 DodgeRam SS00 Truck,
original principal $96,421, due tn monthlyinstallments of $1,786 through 12/08/2013, interestat 4.25%

Long-termnote payable to Liano National Bank - #6054514; (or the construction improvements to the Orb's lift
station; onginal principal $160.000; due in montly tnstallments of $1,717 through 12/10/13; interest adjusted
annually at prime less 1%; currentinterest 6.75%

tong-term noted pavable to JIP Morgan Chase - #1000135711 for the purchase of a 2011 Dodge 5500 Aerial Device;
original principal $89,591; due in montly installments of $1,601 throaugh 12/02/2016; interestat 279%

Llong-term note payable to Arrowhead Bank - H90974 for the purchase of an Excavator, original principal

$151,000 duein monthly installments of $2,781 through 07/09/2013 interest at4 0%,

Long-term note payable 1o Arrowhcad Bank - #90513 for the purchase ol a Truck:original prinicpal $80,202 due in

montly instaliments of 51,477 through 07/09/2013 interest at4 0%

Total Uutities Fund

Total Notes Payable

The remaining balances

cplemiipr 80
2014
2015
2016
2017
Totals:

Balance at

9/30/13

195,717

10,054

57,015

262,786

336,686

of the notes and instaliments payable are due over the lollowing fiscal years:

Principal

104,016
97,047
100,249
35374
$ 336,686

>

ot

Interest

10,935
7,362
4,161
1,852

24310

(4

114,951
104,409
104,410

37,226

S 360,996

Total



K. Capitalized Leases and Other Commitments

Capital lease obligations at September 30, 2013, are composed of the following:

GENERAL FUND

lease payable to Oshkosh Capital fora fire truck: annualinstalt ments of $34, S10including principal and interest
through October 23, 2012 interest atd 97%

lease payable to Yamaha Leasing forgolfcarts;48 monthly installments of $1,485 including principal and interest
through September, 2014 intereslt atd4792%

Lease payable to John Deer Credit (or Progator Sprayer and Top Dresser; 48 monthly installments of $594 including
princtpal and interest through August 1, 2016;interest at4 3%

Total General Funds

Balance at

9/30/13

32,877

61,600

19,498

S 113,975 Future

minimuin fease payments under the lease along with the present value of the minimum lease payments as of September

30,2013:
General
Long-Term
Year Ended Seplember 30, Obligations
2014 59479
2015 53,487
2016 6,470
Total Minimum Lease Payments 119,436
Less Amount Represenung (nterest 5,461
Present Value of Lease Paymentls 113975

L. Changes in Long-Term Liabilites — Component Unit

Due Within

One Year

S 137,039

S 137,039

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance
Componenl Unil Acuivites
Notes Payable -
First State Bank S 2,111,462 S S 131,519 S 1,979,943
Component Unit Activity
tong-Term Debt S 2,111.462 S - S 131,519 $ 1,979,943

On December 12, 2011 the Llano Economic Development Corporation acquired

balance of the loan at September 30, 2013 was $1.819.212.
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a loan from First State Bank
Central Texas in the amount of $2,000,000 for the Community Facilities Project. The loan is payable in quarterly
payments of $45,232 (including interest at 4.250%) beginning March 10, 2012 and ending December 10, 2026. The



On April 17, 2012 the Llano Economic Development Corporation acquired a loan from First State Bank Central
Texas in the amount of $200.000 for the Community Facilities Project. The loan is payable in quarterly payments of
$9.345 (including interest at 3.750%) beginning June 30, 2012 and ending March 30. 2018. The balance of the loan

al September 30, 2012 was $160.731

The remaining balances of the notes payable are due over the following fiscal years:

September 30 Principal
2014 137,039
2015 142,792
2016 148,786
2017 155,033
2018 161,545

2019-2022 534,625
2023-2027 700,123
Tolals: S 1979943

M. RETIREMENT PLAN

Plan Description

interest
81,271
75,518
69,524
63.277
56,765
170,410
68,835

5 585.600

Total
218,310
218,310
218,310
218,310
218,310
705,035

768,958

> 2,565,543

The City provides pension benefits for all of its eligible employees through a non-traditional, joint contributory,
hybrid defined benefit plan in the state-wide Texas Municipal retirement System (TMRS), an agent multiple-
employer public employee retirement system. The plan provisions that have been adopted by the city are within
the options available in the governing state statures of TMRS.

TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual [inancial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information (RS!) for TMRS; the report also provides detailed explanations of the
contributions. benefits and actuarial methods and assumptions used by the System. This report may be obtained
from TMRS™ website at www. TMRS conm.

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City. within the options available in the state statutes
governing TMRS. Plan provisions for the City were as follows:

Deposit Rate

Matching Ratio (City to Employee)

Years requiced for vesting

Service retirement ehgibility (expressed as
age/vears of service)

Updated Service Credit

Annuity Increase (toreticees)

Planyear 2013
7%
15tol
S
60/5,0/20

100% Repeating, Transfers

0% of CP!

Plan year 2012
7%
151
5

60/5,0/20

10% Repeating, Transfers

0% of CPI



Contributions

Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determine annually by the actuary, using
the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method. This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate and the prior
service cost contribution rate, which is calculated 1o be a level percent of payroll from year to year. The normal cost
contribution rate finances the portion of an active member’s projected benefit allocated annually; the prior service
contribution rate amortizes the unfunded (overfunded) actuarial liability (asset) over the applicable period for that
city. Both the normal cost and prior service contribution rates include recognition of the projected impact of
annually repeating benefits, such as Updated Service Credits and Annuily Increases.

The City contributes to the TMRS Plan at an actuarially determined rate. Both the employees and the City make
contributions monthly. Since the City needs to know its contribution rate in advance for budgetary purposes, there

is a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation that serves as the basis for the rate and the calendar year when
the rate goes into effect

The required contribution rates for fiscal year 2013 were determined as part of the December 31. 2010 and 2011
actuarial valuations. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation, December 31, 2012, also follows:

12/31/201 1 B
Projected Unit Credit
Level Percent

~_ Of Payroll
237 years_;
Closed period

Valuation Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method

12/31/2010
Projected Unit Credit
Level Percent
~_ Of Payroll

24 Years;
Closed period

12/3172012 |
Projected Unit Credit |
Level Percent
Of Payroll
22.3 Years;
Closed period

‘GASB 25 Equivalent
Single Amortization Period

Amortization Period for new
Gains/Losses
Assel Valuation Method

25 years 25 years 25 years

10-year Smoothed 10-year Smoothed 10-year Smoothed

Market Markel Markel
Actuarial Assumptions: - 1.5% 71.0% 7.0%
Investment Rate of Return?
Projected Salary Increases* Varrééb_y Varies by Varies by
- - Age and service Age and service Age and service
*Includes inflation at 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Cost-of-Living Adjustments 0% 0.0% 0.0%

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status as of December 31, 2012, under the two separate actuarial valuations, is presented as follows:

Actuarial Actuanal Actuarial | UAAL as a
Valuation Value of Accrued Percentage
Date Assets Liability Unfunded Covered of
(AAL) Funded AAL (UAAL) | Payroll Covered
ratio Payroll
: (1) ) 3) ) 5) (6)
(/(2) (2)-(1) (4)/(5)
12/31/2012 | $4.218,610 | $5,140.,842 82.1% $922,232 $1,936,233 47.6%
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Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared to past expectalions and new estimates are made about the future.

Actuarial calculations are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan in effect at the time
of each valuation. and reflect a long-term perspective. Consistent with that perspective, actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities
and the actuarial value of assets. The schedule of funding progress. presented as Required Supplementary
information following the notes to the financial statements. presents multi-year trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assels is increasing or decreasing over {ime relative to the actuarial accrued liability of
benefits.

N. Supplemental Death Benefits Fund

The City also participates in the cost sharing multiple-cmployer defined benefit group-term life insurance plan
operated by the Texas Municipal System (TMRS) known as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF). The
City elected, by ordinance, to provide group-term life insurance coverage (O both current and retired employees.
The city may terminate coverage under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance belore
November | of any year o be effective the following January 1.

The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equalto the employee’'s annual
salary (calculated based on the employee’s aclual earnings. for the 12-month period preceding the month of death);
retired employees are insured for $7.500; this coverage is an “other postemployment benefit,”” OPEB.

Contributions

The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual actuarial valuation.
The rate is equal to the costof providing, one-year term life insurance. The funding policy for the SDBF program (s
Lo assure that adequale resources are available to meet all death benefit payments for the upcoming year; the intent is
not to pre-fund retiree term life insurance during, employees” enlire careers.

The City's contributions to the TMRS SDBF for the years ended 2013. 2012 and 201 | were $1.764. $1.760 and
$1.748, respectively. whichequaled the required contributions cach year

Plan/ Annual Required Actual Percentage of
Calendar Contnbuton Contributton Made ARC

Year ) B (Rate) o (Rate) Co_nlnbul_ed_

2011 713% 7146% 100 00%

2012 823% 851% 100 00%

2013 897% 923% 100 00%

2014 943% 971% 100 00%

O. Employee Health, Dental and L ife Insurance Benefits
All regular full time employees of the City are eligible, after one month of employment, for coverage under the
group hospitalization, medical, dental and life insurance program provided by the City. The City pays 100% of the
premium for the employee for medical and dental insurance and 50% of the employee’s dependents’ premiums.
Employees are also provided $20,000 in life insurance benelits.
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Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund
The City participates in the Texas Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund on behalf of its volunteer firemen. Under

this plan, the City contributes an amount on behalf of each fireman enrolled in the plan. The City’s contribution to
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013 was $18.891.

Q. Contingent Liabilities

R.

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject lo audit and adjustment by grantor agencies,
principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a
liabitity of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot
be determined at this time, although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Interfund Receivable and Payables

Interfund balances at September 30, 2013. consisted of the following;:
~ Receivable - Payable
General Fund o
Component Unit S 48,571 S -
Special Revenue - 32,028
Special Revenue
General Fund 32,028 -

Component Unit

General Fund 48,571

Totals $ 80599 S 80599

During the year ended September 30, 2013. the City’s transters between funds consisted of:

Transfers Transfers
In Out
General Fund 1,297,247 o
Enterprise funds
Utility Fund 1,297,247
Totals S 1,297,247 $ 1,297,247

Cash Flows Statement - Supplemental Disclosures

Since the city is tax exempt, no income tax was paid in 2013 and 2012. The City paid interest in the amount of
$303.623 in 2013 and $307.52} 1n 2012.

Risk Management

The City’s risk management program includes coverage for property. general liability, automobile liability, public
official’s liability and employee dishonesty bonds. The City participates in the Texas Municipal League joint self-

insurance fund, which is a public entity risk pool. The premiums paid to TML result in the transfer of risk to the
pool.
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U. GASB 54 — Fund Balance Reporting,

Beginning with fiscal year end September 30. 2011 the City implemenied GASB Statement No. 54, *“Fund Balance
Reporting and Government Fund Type Definitions.” This Statement provides more clearly defined fund balance
categories lo make (he nature and extent of the constraints placed on a government’s fund balances more
transparent. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints:

«  Non-spendable fund balance — amounts that are not In non-spendable form (such as inventory) or
are required to be maintained intact.

» Restricted fund balance — amounts constrained 1o specilic purposes by their providers (Such as
grantors. bondholders. and higher levels of governiment), through constitutional provisions, or by
enabling legislation.

« Committed fund balance — amounts constrained to specific purposes by the City itself, using its
highest level of decision-making authority (i.e. City Council). To be reports as commilted, amounts
cannol be used for any other purpose unless the City takes the same highest level action [0 remove
or change the constraint.

o Assigned fund balance — amounts the City intends lo use for a specific purpose. Intent can be
expressed by the City council or by an official or body to which the City Council delegates the
authority.

e Unassigned fund balance — amounts that are available for any purpose. Positive amounts are
reported only in the general fund.

The City Council establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by passage of an ordinance.
This is typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget. A fund balance commitment is further
indicated in the budget document as a designation or commitment of the fund (such as for special incentives).
Assigned fund balance is established by the City Council through adoption or amendment of the budget as intended
for specific purpose (such as the purchase of fixed assets. construction, debt service, or other purposes).

V. Related Parties

In the ordinary course of business. the City has and expects 1o continue to have transaclions with its employees and
elected officials. In the opinion of management, such transactions were on substantially the same 1erms. including
interest rates and collateral. as those prevailing at the ime of comparable transactions with other persons and did
not involve more than a normal risk of collectability or present any other unfavorable features to the City.

W Service Concession Arrangement

in March 2012, the City entered into a lease agreement with Two Pro Club Management, Inc. (Two Pro) to operate
the City’s municipal golf course through March 31. 2013 and may be extended for additional five year term by
mutual agreement. The City entered into a lease agreement with Southern Golf Management for approximately
two months beginning July 20,2013 and another agreement with Southern Goll Management in October 2013,

I. Operation and Management — Southern Golf will assume responsibility for managing all golf facility personnel,

all existing services including golf operations, golf shop activities and all agronomic oversight, and all related
equipment and facilities.

2. Marketing — Southern Golf will review marketing and sales opportunities for the facility. review budgets and
profit loss statements, and meet and report twice a month with Brenton Lewis, the Llano City Manager.
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Equipment — Equipment in inventory shall be retained in ownership by the City. Southern Golf agrees to
maintain all equipment under good management practices. Should new equipment be necessary, Southern Golf
shall bring these needs to the City and the City may agree to purchase equipment under proper procedures.
Should Southern Golf elect to buy a piece of equipment the City shall have no obligation to pay or insure any
aspect of such piece of equipment.

Fees — The City shall pay to Southern Golf a management fee (the “Management Fee”) for the Services
provided under this Agreement as follows: This management fee will be equal 1o the sum of $4.000 per month
plus any travel expenses.

Subsequent Events

The City has evaluated subsequent events through May 5. 2014, the date which the tinancial statements were
available 10 be issued. The City is not aware of any subsequent events that materially impact the financial
statements.
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CITY OF LLANO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGLS IN FUND BAL ANCE
BUDGLET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2013

Actual Amounts

variance With

{GAAP BASIS) Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive or
Original Final (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property Taxes S 588,951 S 588,951 S 614,461 S 25,510
General Sales and Use Taxes 720,000 720,000 710,056 (9.944)
Franchise Tax 72,500 725500 79.753 7,253
OtherTaxes 84,800 84.800 80.451 (4,349)
Licenses andPermits 17,400 17.400 11,584 (5,816}
Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants 428,000 463,294 35,294
Charges for Services 668,000 668,000 733,955 65,955
Fines 52,465 57.465 50,087 (7.378)
Investment Earnings 6,000 6.000 6,866 866
Rents and Royalties 70,481 70481 79,366 8.885
Contributions & Donatons [rom Private Sources 13,000 13,000
Other Revenue 97,650 104,991 128,539 23,548
Total Revenues 2,378,247 2,818,588 2,971,412 152,824
EXPENDITURES
City Council 25,434 25,434 25.491 57
General Administration 810,095 810,095 769,644 {40,451}
Main Street 74,074 74074 66,748 (7.326)
Police 770,956 770956 726.710 (44,246)
Municipal Court 90,438 90.4 38 88,575 (1.863)
Code Enforcement 24,392 24,392 5.971 (18.421)
Fire 102,956 102,956 88.938 (14,018)
Parks and Recreahon 336,596 336,596 308,235 {28,361}
LantexTheater 11.306 11,306 5.564 (5,742}
Cemetery 69,962 69,962 69,137 (825)
Golf Course 397,053 397,053 324,020 {73.033)
Street 673.499 673,499 404,985 (268.514)
Airport 370,500 370.500 384,539 14,039
Christmas Lighting 5,000 5,000 15,034 10,034
Depot Museum 7.725 1.725 8,125 400
DebtService:
Other Debt Principal 74,142 74,142
OtherDebtInterest 8.419 8,419
Capital Outlay
Capital Outlay 16,000 528,900 739,221 210,321
Total Expenditures 3,785.986 4,298,886 4,113,498 {185,388)
£xcess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over {Under) 1.407,739) 1,480,298} (1.142,086) - 338,212
Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from Debt 51,261 51,261
Transfersin 1,407,738 1,407,238 1,297,247 {110.491)
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) 1,407,738 1.407,738 1348508 (59.230]
Net Change in Fund Balances (1) (72.560) 206,422 278,982
fund Balance -October 1 (Beginning) 150,985 150,985 150,985 -
Fund Balance -september 30 (Ending) 5 150984 S 78,425 S 357.407 S 278982
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CITY OF LLANO. TEXAS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Texas Municipal Retirement System

Schedule of Funding Progress

(unaudited)
Actuarial UAALAS a
Acturial Acturial Accrued percentapge of
Valuation Value of Lrabihity Unlunded AaL Covered Covered
Date Assets (AnL) funded Rato (LAAL) Payrall Payroll
(11 (2 {3) (4} (51 ]

(1) (2111) [a)/(5)

12/31/2009 5 2,060,324 § 2,758,788 74 80% 5 696,404 $ 1,731,258 40 1%
12/31/2010 $ 3563102 § 4,392,209 8110% s 829.107 5 1,885,119 aa0%
12/31/2011 S 3897523 5 4,822,220 B0 80% 5 924697 § 1.965.244 a11%
12/31/2012 4 42185610 5 5.140.842 Bl 06% S 922232 5 1.936,233 ar6i%



EXHIBIT H-1
CITY OF LLANO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30. 2013

56 72 Total
TCF Main Nonmajor
TEA-21 Grant Street Grant Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Due from Other Funds $ 17,028 $ 15,000 ) 32,028
Total Assets 5 17,028 $ 15000 S 32,028
Fund Balances:
Restricted Fund Balance:
federal or State Funds Grant Restriction 17,028 15,000 32,028
Total Fund Balances 17,028 15,000 32,028
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 17,028 $ 15,000 $ 32,028

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT H-2
CITY OF LLANO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

56 72 Total
TCF Main Nonmajor
TEA-21 Grant Street Grant Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - October 1 (Beginning) S 17,028 $ 15,000 ) 32,028
Fund Balance - September 30 (Ending) S 17,028 S 15,000 S 32,028

The notes 1o the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Donald L. Allman, CPA, PC
D, TRAmmp P 505 E. University Ave..Ste.165

J:\ Donald L. Allman, CPA Georgelown, Texas 78626
Phone 512-421-3700

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditor’'s Report
Honorable Mayor and Aldermen

City of Llano, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government A wditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States. the financial statements of the government activilics, the business-type activities. the aggregalc
discretely presented component unit, each major fund. and the apgregate remaining fund information of City of Llano.
Texas. as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements. which

collectively comprise city of Llano, Texas’ basic financial statements. and have issued our report thereon dated May 5.
2014,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit of the financial stalements. w¢ considered the City of Llano. Texas  internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing, our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Llano. Texas™ internal control Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of City of Llano, Texas’ internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or opcration of a control does not allow management OF
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. to prevent, Of detect and correct, misstatements
on a tumely basis. A material weakness 1s a deficiency. or a combination of deficiencies. in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility thata material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented. or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A Significant deficiency 15 a deficiency. or a combination of deficiencies, in

<

internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough o merit attention by those charged
with governance

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was
not designed 1o identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be malerial weaknesses or, significant deficiencies.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identfy any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance aboul whether City of Llano, Texas’ financial statements are free from
material misstalement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statemenl amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed not instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under CGovernment Auditing Standards.

MEMBER TEXAS SOCICTY OF CERTHHED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
205 East Umiversity, Ste 165, GEORGETOWN. TEXAS 78626 312-422-3700 AN $12-240-3160 WEBSITE www donallmancpa com
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Purpose of this Report -

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Donald L. Allman. CPA, PC
Georgetown, Texas

May 5, 2014
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Donald L. Allman, CPA, PC
205 E. University Ave.Ste.165

Js¥ Donald L. Allman, CPA Georgetown, Texas 78626
: 4 Phone $12-422-3700

The Accounting Firm
of

May 5, 2014

Honorable Mayor and Aldermen
City of Llano, Texas

We have audited the financial statements of the governmemal activities. the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units. each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Llano,
Texas for the year ended September 30, 2013. Professional standards require that we provide you with information
about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards (and. 1f applicable. Government Auditing
Standards and OMB Circular A-133), as well as cerain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit.
We have communicated such information inour letier 10 you. professional standards also require that we communicate
to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting
policies used by City of Llano. Texas are described in Note | to the financial statements. No new accounting, policies
were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2012, We noted no transactions entered
into by the governmental unit during, the year tor which there is a fack of authoritalive guidance or CONSENSUS. All
significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial stalements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future evenis. Certain
accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance 10 the financial statements and because of
the possibility that future events affecting them may ditfer significantly from those expected. There were no significant
accounting estirmates.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance (0 financial statement
users. The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing, and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us O accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other
than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them 10 the appropriate level of management. Management has
corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as 4 result of audit procedures and
corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate. 0 cach opinion unit’s financial

statements taken asa whole.
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Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting. reporting. or auditing matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the' financial statements or the auditor’s report.
We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation letter
dated May 5, 2014.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountanis

In some cases. management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, similar
to obtaining a “second opinion™ on cerlain siations. 1l a consultation involves application ol an accounting principle 1o
the governmental unit’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on
those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant 10 check with us 1o determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We penerally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing, standards. with
management each year pnor 10 retention as the governmental unit’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred in
the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters.

Wilh respect 1o the supplementary in formation accompanying the financial statemenis. we made certain inquiries of
management and evaluated the form, content. and methods of preparing the information to determine that the
information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the Unites States of America. the method of
preparing 1t _has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our
audit of the financial siatements.  We compared and reconciled the supplementary information 1o the underlying
accounting records used 1o prepare the financial statements orto the financial statements themselves.

This information is intended solely for the use of City Council and management of City of Llano. Texas and 1s not
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties

Very truly yours,

Donald L. Allman, CPA PC
Georgetown, Texas



CITY OF LLANO, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended September 30,2013

A. Summarv of Auditors’ Results

. Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financing reporting
One or more material weaknesses identified? ~ Yes
One or more significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be material
weaknesses? Yes
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes

2. Federal Awards

Type of auditor's report issued:
Internal control over financing reporting
One or more material weaknesses identified?
One or more significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be material

weaknesses”?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

[ntemal control over major programs:
One or more material weaknesses identfied?
One or more significant deficiencies identified

that are not considered to be material
weaknesses?

Type of auditors' report issued on complance for
major programs

B. Financial Statement Findings
None

Unmodified

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Unmodified

_51-

X None Reported

X No

None Reported

No

None Reported



CITY OF LLANO, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

C. Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs

No audit findings or questioned costs noted.

U
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CITY OF LLANO, TEXAS
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

None noted so no summary schedule of prior audit findings.
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CITY OF LLANO, TEXAS
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
For the Year Ended September 30,2013

None noted sono corrective action required.

(5]
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CITY OF LLANO, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Federal Grantor:

Pass Thru Grantor:

CFDA Number

REVENUE
State:

Local:

TOTAL REVENUE:

EXPENSES

State:
Construction
Engineering
Other

Local:
Construction
Engineering

Administration

TOTAL EXPENSES:

Excess revenue

over expenditures

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

No fFederal Monies
Texas Department of Transportation
Aviation Grant

20.106
-State- -Local-
Prior Current Prior Current
Budget Years Year Years Year Total Variance
$ 450,000 $ - $ 408230 % - 0% - % 408230 $ 41770
50,000 - 36,019 36,019 13,981
500,000 - 408,230 - 36.019 444 249 55751
432,892 - 391,122 - 391,122 41,770
10,807 - 10,807 10,807 -
12,460 - 12,460 12,460
4
53,181 . 39,200 39,200 13,981
509.340 - 414,389 39,200 453,589 55,751
$ (9340) & - % (6159 3 - % (3181) $ (9340) 3

(W)
()



CITY OF LLANO, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Federal Grantor:  Preserve America Grant 2010
Pass Thru Grantor:

Red Top Jail & Museum
CFDA Number 48.10-AP-5050

-Federal -Local-
Prior Current Prior Current
Budget Years Year Years Year Total Variance

REVENUE
Federal: $ 40236 3 - $ 40236 9 - 3 - % 40236 %

Local: 40236 - - = 40,236 40,236

TOTAL REVENUE: B0472 . 40,236 - 40,236 80,472

EXPENSES

Federal:
Construction 40,236 - 40,236 . - 40,238
Engineering - - - - -
Other

Local:
Construction - - -
Engineering -
Other 40236 - - - 40,236 40,236

TOTAL EXPENSES: 80472 - 40,236 - 40,236 80,472

Excess revenue

over expenditures $ - 3 -3 - 3 - % - 93 - 3
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CITY OF LLANO, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Federal Grantor: 2011 Community Development Block Grant
Pass Thru Grantor: Texas Department of Transportation

CFDA Number 14.228
-State- -Local-
Prior Current Prior Current
Budget Years Year Years Year Total Variance
REVENUE
Slate $275000 $ 4425 $270571S $ - % - $275000 % -
Local: 41,250 - - - 45 675 45675 (4.425)
TOTAL REVENUE: 316.250 4 425 270,575 - 45 675 320675 (4.425)
EXPENSES
State
Construction 252,000 - 252,000 = 252,000 -
Engineering 13,000 4425 8.575 - - 13.000 -
Other 10,000 - 10,000 10,000
Local
Construction 3,395 - - - 3,395 3.395
Engineering 19625 - - - 19,625 19625 -
Administration 21625 - - 18.994 2631 21,625
TOTAL EXPENSES: 319,645 4425 270,575 18,994 25651 319,645 -
Excess revenue
over expenditures $ (3399 % - % - $(18994) $20024 $ 1030 3 (4,425).
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Federal Grantor:
Pass Thru Grantor: Texas Department of Transportation 2012

CFDA Number

REVENUE
State-

Local

TOTAL REVENUE:

EXPENSES
State
Maintenance
Engineering
Other
Local:
Maintenance
Engineering

Administratton

TOTAL EXPENSES:

Excess revenue

over expenditures

CITY OF LLANO, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Ramp Program

State -Local-
Prior Current Prior Current
Budget Years Year Years Year Total Variance
$ 10947 % - $ 4352 - % - $ 4352 % 6595
10,947 4352 6,595 10,947 -
21,894 4352 4352 6.595 15,299 6,595
10947 4352 6,595 - = 10,947
10,947 4352 6,595 10,947 :
21.894 4,352 6,595 4,352 6.595 21.894
b - % (4352) 3 (2243) §

$ (6.595) 3 6,595.
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CITY OF LLANO, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Federal Grantor:

Pass Thru Grantor:

CFDA Number

REVENUE
State:

Local-

TOTAL REVENUE:

EXPENSES

State:
Construction
Engineering
Administration

Local
Construction
Engineering

Administration

TOTAL EXPENSES:

Excess revenue

over expenditures

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

2013 Texas Department of Transportation
Disaster Relief CDBG Grant

712127
State -Local-
Prior Current Prior Current
Budget Years Year Years Year Total Variance
$350,000 % $ 12200 % - 3 12,200 $337,800
96.900 53,798 53,798 43,102
446,900 12,200 53,798 65,998 380,902
325600 - 325,600
24,400 12,200 12,200 12,200
85500 42,398 42398 43,102
11,400 11,400 11,400 B
446,900 12,200 53,798 65,998 380,902
$ b b $ $ $
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CITY OF LLANO, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Reporting Entity

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal financial
assistance programs of the City of Llano. The City of Llano reporting entity is defined in Note 1 to its basic
financial statements. All federal financial assistance received directly from federal agencies. as well as federal
financial assistance passed through other government agencies, is included in the schedule.

Basis of Accounting

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.
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System for Award Management
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RE SEAL City of Llano
301 West Main Street
Llano, Texas 78643
Exemption Determination for Activities Listed at 24 CFR §58.34

Grant Recipient: City of Llano Project Name: _Planning & Urban Environmental Design

Project Description (Include all actions which are either geographically or functionally related):

Planning and Engineering Services

Location:  City-wide

Funding Source: Planning and Building Capacity Fund - Other

Estimated Funding Amount:  $§ 32,145.00 Grant Number: PENDING

I have reviewed and determined that the abovementioned project is Exempt per 24 CFR §58.34 as
follows:

@ 58.34(1). Environmental & other studies, resource identification & the development of plans &
strategies;

58.34(2) Information and financial services;

58.34 (3) Administrative and management activities;

58.34(4) Public services that will not have a physical impact or result in any physical changes,

including but not limited to services concerned with employment, crime prevention, child care, health,

drug abuse, education, counseling, energy conservation and welfare or recreational needs;

58.34(5) Inspections and testing of properties for hazards or defects:

58.34(6) Purchase of insurance;

58.34(7) Purchase of tools;

58.34 (8) Engineering or design costs;

58.34(9) Technical assistance and training;

58.34(10) Assistance for temporary or permanent improvements that do not alter environmental

conditions and are limited to protection, repair, or restoration activities necessary only to control or

arrest the effects from disasters or imminent threats to public safety including those resulting from

physical deterioration;

58.34(11) Payment of principal and interest on loans made or obligations guaranteed by HUD;

58.34(12) Any of the categorical exclusions listed in §58.35(a) provided that there are no

circumstances that require compliance with any other Federal laws and authorities cited in §58.5.

—

OO O OxOOO O

The responsible entity must also complete and attach the 58.6 Compliance Checklist. By signing below
the Responsible Entity officially determines in writing that all activities covered by this determination are
Exempt and meets the conditions specified for such exemption under section 24 CFR §58.34. This
document must be maintained in the ERR.

AUTHORIZED RESPONSIBLE ENTITY OFFICIAL:

v\"-\a-ﬂ e | February 24, 2015

Authorized Rksponsible Enti(y Signature Date

Mikel Virdell Mayor
Authorized Responsible Entity Name (printed) Title (printed)




CITY OF LLANO

301 W. Main
Llano, Texas 78643

CITY MANAGER Office (325)247-4158 / Fax (325)247-4150 ouarOR MAYORPRO-TEM
Brenton Lewis Mike Virde Bryan Miiller
ALDERMAN

ALDERWOMAN John Ferguson

CIT\( SE.CRETARY Gail Lang Todd Keller
Toni Ml\lam Allen Hopson

February 24, 2015

Ms. Suzanne Barnard

Director, Texas CDBG Program
P.O. Box 12847

Austin, Texas 78711

Re: Pre-Agreement Cost Approval for Planning Activities

Dear Ms. Barnard:

This is to notify the Texas Department of Agriculture, Texas Community Development Block Grant (TxCDBG) Program
that the City of Llano intends to proceed with its 2015 Plannin g and Capacity Building Fund application project per the pre-

agreement costs stratagem. As a condition of this pre-agreement to acknowledge and agree to the following:

1. All applicable state and federal laws, including procurement procedures for professional services and Environmental
Review Exemption necessary for planning activities by TxCDBG, procurement of professional planning services

requirements, and any applicable contract Special Conditions.

2. The Department shall not reimburse any costs under this agreement until a 2015 Planning and Capacity Building Fund
contract is fully executed with the city. Department shall not be liable for costs incurred prior to PCB application deadline
date March 9, 2015 or for any activities not included in Exhibit A, Performance Statement, and E

executed contract associated with the 2015 grant.
Sincerely,

Mikel V
Mayor, City of Llano

xhibit B, Budget, of the



2013 Unemployment Rates (UR) by County

County UR County UR County UR
Anderson 7.20 Frio 5.40 Morris 8.80
Andrews 3.70 Gaines 4.60 Navarro 7.10
Aransas 6.10 Galveston 6.80 Nolan 5.40
Atascosa 6.20 Gillespie 3.90 Nueces 5.80
Austin 5.80 Glasscock 4.20 Palo Pinto 6.00
Bandera 5.50 Gregg 5.50 Panola 5.10
Bastrop 6.10 Guadalupe 5.60 Parker 5.70
Bee 6.50 Harris 6.20 Pecos 4.90
Bexar 6.00 Harrison 6.40 Rains 6.40
Blanco 5.00 Haskell 5.20 Red River 9.80
Borden 3.10 Hays 5.20 Reeves 8.50
Bowie 7.20 Henderson 6.90 Refugio 4.20
Brazoria 6.60 Hood 5.10 Rockwall 5.80
Brooks 7.00 Hopkins 5.30 Runnels 5.80
Brown 5.70 Howard 5.70 Rusk 6.10
Burnet 5.00 Hunt 6.60 San Patricio 7.50
Caldwell 6.70 Jim Wells 5.00 Scurry 3.90
Callahan 4.90 Johnson 6.00 Shackelford 2.80
Camp 7.10 Jones 6.20 Smith 6.50
Cass 9.20 Karnes 5.80 Somervell 5.00
Chambers 7.00 Kaufman 6.50 Stephens 5.10
Cherokee 7.50 Kendall 5.20 Stonewall 4.20
Coleman 6.00 Kenedy 3.30 Tarrant 6.10
Collin 5.70 Kent 4.90 Taylor 4.90
Colorado 5.20 Kerr 5.30 Terrell 6.50
Comal 6.10 Kleberg 5.50 Throckmorton 4.50
Comanche 5.30 Knox 5.70 Titus 7.10
Crane 4.90 Lamar 7.90 Travis 5.10
Dallas 6.70 Lee 4.70 Upshur 5.70
Dawson 7.00 Liberty 8.10 Upton 3.30
Delta 7.20 _{Live Oak 4.00 Van Zandt 6.00
Denton 5.50 | Llano 6.10 t://alker 6.40
Duval 6.10 oving . aller 6.40
Eastland 5.70 Marion 6.90 Ward 4.30
Ector 4.00 Martin 4.00 Wharton 6.00
Ellis 6.30 Matagorda 9.60 Williamson 5.30
Erath 5.70 McMullen 3.00 Wilson 5.70
Fayette 4.40 Medina 6.00 Winkler 4.40
Fisher 5.30 Midland 3.30 Wise 5.90
Fort Bend 5.70 Mitchell 6.10 Wood 6.60
Franklin 5.80 Montgomery 5.40

Texas Workforce Commission, 2013 Annual Unemployment Rates (Not Seasonally Adj.)
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51701 POVERTY STATUS IN THE PAST 12 MONTHS

2008-2012 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates

Supporting documentation on code lists, subject definitions, data accuracy, and statistical testing can be found on the American Community Survey
website in the Data and Documentation section.

Sample size and data quality measures (including coverage rates, allocation rates, and response rates) can be found on the American Community
Survey website in the Methodology section.

Although the American Community Survey (ACS) produces population, demographic and housing unit estimates, itis the Census Bureau's Population
Estimates Program that produces and disseminates the official estimates of the population for the nation, states, counties, cities and towns and
estimates of housing units for states and counties.

988/3,132 = .3155

~ Subject

e ‘Llano city, Texas
. Total . Below poverty level | Percent below
Yot y 0 poverty level
SRR Estimate Margin of Error Estimate | Marginof Eror | Estimate
Population for whom poverty status is determined | 3,132 +-92 988 | +-347 31 5%

Under 18 years 730 +/-163 301 | +-149  412%
Related children under 18 years B 730 4163 o 41.2%
18 to 64 years ' 1,753 +/-150 579 . +-204 33.0%

65 years and over ) l eae |l wass| 108 oy o +/-§BT ) 16.6%

ol e e R D T ; {eRieess §
—Tah i _ Y
Male 1,431 +-126 425 4173 29.7%
Female o napeee oL .. . +del| . . 663 211 | 33.1%
RACE AND HISPANIC OR LATINO ORIGIN - | e e .

One race i 3,132 +/-92 988 :H’:§4l__ N 31_.5_%
White R | 2,958 +/-158 814 | 4319 215%
Black or African American 5 +/-9 5 +H-9 100.0%
American Indian and Alaska Natve | 0 +-13 0 | AL l - -
Asian T T 0 +/-13 0| +/-13 -
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander o 413" 0! +-13 | -
Some otherrace 169 +/-130 169 | +-130 100.0%

Twa or more races S i 0 i 418! 0 +-13 | med -

Hispanic or Latino origin (of any race) i 449 T 215 +-143 |  47.9% j
White alone, not Hispanic or Latino 2,678 +/-228 768 +/-313 | ) 28.7% [
[T T e HERg [ |
EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT l

Population 25 years and over 1 2179 4199, 535 | 4173 } . 246%

Less than high school graduate 557 +/-169 315 | +-157  56.6%

High school graduate (includes equivalency) ] 619 RV 95 | +-51 |  153% |

Some college, associate’'s degree 482 +/-147 93 ! - :r_/-58 o 19_.__3_"@“

Bachelor's degree or higher R i 8ot Az 32| 439 B1%

EMPLOYMENT STATUS I T R i T A |

Civilian labor force 16 years and over 1,324 | +/-184 274 +-113 20.7%

Employed LG 1,253 | w72 288 w12 20.6%
Male 627 +/-121 ‘ 1_37 +/-78 21.9%

1 of4 02/21/2015




‘Subject

S R . Llanocity, Texas B
" Total _ L " Below poverty level Percent below
i GE Lo I _poverty level
PR _Margin of Error | Estimate Margin of Error |  Estimate
Female 626 183 21| w7 19.3%
Unemployed 71 +/-54 16 ~ +-20 [ 22.5%
Male 28 |  +-34 ol +13]  00%
Female 43 +-47 16 +-20  37.2%
WORK EXPERIENCE | o
Population 16 years and over 2,509 +-179 763 | +-253 | 30.4%
Worked full-time, year-round in the past 12 months | 938 +/-184 103 +-60 11.0%
Worked part-time or part-year in the past 12 months . 492 4100 | 188 o1 38.2%
Did not work [ 1,079 +-209 a2 +/-185 43.7%
e : S I
All Individuals below: e
50 percent of poverty level o ] 204 +/-120 x X (X)
125 percent of poverty level - 1,239 +/-385 (X) . (X)_ - (X)
150 percent of poverty level S | 1,370 +/-380 ) | ) | (X)
185 percent of poverty level 1,638 +/-340 (X) ! (X) (X)
200 percent of poverty level | 1,737 +/-324 | e x) | X)
Unrelated individuals for whom poverty status is 687 174 | 254 44-9871 37.0%
determined s 1 Rty 1 L —
EE . | 257 +-108 75 | +/-62 29.2%
Female ' BE 430 +-131 179 | +-79 | 41.6%
Mean income deficit for unrelated individuals (dollars) 5204 | 41324 ) ]_ T ]' X) :
Al SR e B 21 i : i = i
Worked full-time, year-round in the past 12months - = 253 +-100 1 7 | - -1-_:‘-__é2___? 6.7%
Worked less than full-time, year-round in the past 12 132 +-90 96 +-75 72.7%
months ¥ . — W S — i " -
Did not work | 32| 407 4| +-70 | 46.7%
PERCENT IMPUTED e { o e < ) }
Poverty status for individuals T o5a% i ) ! (X) (X) X)

2 of 4
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subject Liano city, Texas
Percent below
| MarginofError
Population for whom paverty status is determined +-11.2
AGE -

Under 18 years o +-18.9
Related children under 18 years [ +/-189

18 to 64 years T ana

65 years and over == +-92

SEX ) S 3%
Male ' - | +-11.9
Female Y T el 50

RACE AND HISPANIC OR LATINO ORIGIN ]

One race - — +-11.2
White - | +-10.9
Black or African American T +-100.0
American Indian and Alaska Native =% T
Asian ' S i
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander l -
Some other race I ] +-19.8

Two or more races T R .

Hispanic or Latino origin (of any race) [ +-29.4
White alone, not Hispanic or Latino . +#-115
EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT ]

Population 25 years and over "ji:}ts_';_

Less than high school graduate ' H-21.1 |
High school graduate (includes equivalency). | | +-8.9

Some college, associate's degree 4133
Bachelor's degree or higher T

EMPLOYMENT STATUS R ]
Civilian labor force 16 yearsandover  +/-89
Employed e G R
Male +-12.2
Female - { +-11.5
Unemployed - ! +-24.0
Male o o i . +-602
Female o o +/-47.1

WORK EXPERIENCE _
Poputation 16 years and over |
Worked full-time, year-round in the past 12 months

" Worked part-time or part-year in the past 12 months

Did not work

All Individuals below:

' 125 percent of poverty level )
150 percent of poverty level R
185 percent of poverty level i (X)
200 percent of poverty level [ e a0

Unrelated individuals for whom poverty status is

determined
Male

Female

3 of 4
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Subject Henosm o

| Percent below

poverty level
| Margin of Error |

Mean income deficit for unrelated individuals (dollars) )
Worked full-time, year-round in the past 12 months _] = :lishsj
Worked less than full-ime, year-round in the past 12~ +/-23.7
months N I S|
Did not work { +/-18.6
PERCENT IMPUTED ' . Rt "___‘
Poverty status for individuals - ()_(} |

Data are based on a sample and are subject to sampling variability. The degree of uncertainty for an estimate arising from sampling variability is
represented through the use of a margin of error. The value shown here is the 90 percent margin of error. The margin of error can be interpreted
roughly as providing a 90 percent probability that the interval defined by the estimate minus the margin of error and the estimate plus the margin of
error (the lower and upper confidence bounds) contains the true value, In addition to sampling variability, the ACS estimates are subject to
nonsampling error (for a discussion of nonsampling variability, see Accuracy of the Data). The effect of nonsampling error is not represented in these
tables.

While the 2008-2012 American Community Survey (ACS) data generally reflect the December 2009 Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
definitions of metropolitan and micropolitan statistical areas; in certain instances the names, codes, and boundaries of the principal cities shown in
ACS tables may differ from the OMB definitions due to differences in the effective dates of the geographic entities.

Estimates of urban and rural population, housing units, and characteristics reflect boundaries of urban areas defined based on Census 2000 data.
Boundaries for urban areas have not been updated since Census 2000. As a result, data for urban and rural areas from the ACS do not necessarily
reflect the results of ongoing urbanization.

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2008-2012 American Community Survey

Explanation of Symbols:

1. An "* entry in the margin of error column indicates that either no sample observations or too few sample observations were available to
compute a standard error and thus the margin of error. A statistical test is not appropriate.

2. An - entry in the estimate column indicates that either no sample observations or too few sample observations were available to compute an
estimate, or a ratio of medians cannot be calculated because one or both of the median estimates falls in the lowest interval or upper interval of an
open-ended distribution.

3. An - following a median estimate means the median falls in the lowest interval of an open-ended distribution.

4. An '+ following a median estimate means the median falls in the upper interval of an open-ended distribution.

5. An """ entry in the margin of error column indicates that the median falls in the lowest interval or upper interval of an open-ended distribution. A
statistical test is not appropriate.

6. An '“****' entry in the margin of error column indicates that the estimate is controlled. A statistical test for sampling variability is not appropriate.

7. An'N'entry in the estimate and margin of error columns indicates that data for this geographic area cannot be displayed because the number of
sample cases is too small.

8. An '(X)' means that the estimate is not applicable or not available.

4 of 4 02/21/2015



U.S. Census Bureau
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B19301 PER CAPITA INCOME IN THE PAST 12 MONTHS (IN 2012 INFLATION-ADJUSTED DOLLARS)

Universe: Total population
2008-2012 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates

Supporting documentation on code lists, subject definitions, data accuracy, and statistical testing can be found on the American Community Survey
website in the Data and Documentation section.

Sample size and data quality measures (including coverage rates, allocation rates, and response rates) can be found on the American Community
Survey website in the Methodology section.

Although the American Community Survey (ACS) produces population, demographic and housing unit estimates, it is the Census Bureau's Population
Estimates Program that produces and disseminates the official estimates of the population for the nation, states, counties, cities and towns and
estimates of housing units for states and counties.

B T e
_n | Estimate [ Margin of Error |

Per capita income in the past 12 months (in 2012 18216 +-4,742
inflation-adjusted dollars) . j S ;

Data are based on a sample and are subject to sampling variability. The degree of uncertainty for an estimate arising from sampling variability is
represented through the use of a margin of error. The value shown here is the 90 percent margin of error. The margin of error can be interpreted
roughly as providing a 90 percent probability that the interval defined by the estimate minus the margin of error and the estimate plus the margin of
error (the lower and upper confidence bounds) contains the true value. In addition to sampling variability, the ACS estimates are subject to
nonsampling error (for a discussion of nonsampling variability, see Accuracy of the Data). The effect of nonsampling error is not represented in these
tables.

While the 2008-2012 American Community Survey (ACS) data generally reflect the December 2009 Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
definitions of metropolitan and micropolitan statistical areas; in certain instances the names, codes, and boundaries of the principal cities shown in
ACS tables may differ from the OMB definitions due to differences in the effective dates of the geographic entities.

Estimates of urban and rural population, housing units, and characteristics reflect boundaries of urban areas defined based on Census 2000 data.
Boundaries for urban areas have not been updated since Census 2000. As a result, data for urban and rural areas from the ACS do not necessarily
reflect the resuits of ongoing urbanization.

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2008-2012 American Community Survey

Explanation of Symbols:

1. An "*' entry in the margin of error column indicates that either no sample observations or too few sample observations were available to
compute a standard error and thus the margin of error. A statistical test is not appropriate.

2. An - entry in the estimate column indicates that either no sample observations or too few sample observations were available to compute an
estimate, or a ratio of medians cannot be calculated because one or both of the median estimates falls in the lowest interval or upper interval of an
open-ended distribution.

3. An - following a median estimate means the median falls in the lowest interval of an open-ended distribution.

4. An '+ following a median estimate means the median falls in the upper interval of an open-ended distribution.

5. An ™** entry in the margin of error column indicates that the median falls in the lowest interval or upper interval of an open-ended distribution. A
statistical test is not appropriate.

6. An "**** entry in the margin of error column indicates that the estimate is controlled. A statistical test for sampling variability is not appropriate.

7. An'N' entry in the estimate and margin of error columns indicates that data for this geographic area cannot be displayed because the number of
sample cases is too small.

8. An ‘(X)' means that the estimate is not applicable or not available.

1 of 1 02/24/2015
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